
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 11 March 2020

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 19 February 2020 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Renewal of sub 100kW electricity contract for 
the Council 

(Pages 5 - 16)

5b Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Strategic Development of 
the VCSE Sector 

(Pages 17 - 30)

5c Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Advice and Information 
Services 

(Pages 31 - 102)

5d Request to go out to Tender - Key Cities Policy and Media Support 
Services 

(Pages 103 - 106)

5e Request for Approval - Contract Award - Electronic Payment Services 
via PayPoint and Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL) 

(Pages 107 - 114)

5f Request to go out to tender - Salford Residents Funeral Service (Pages 115 - 118)

5g Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - (Pages 119 - 126)

Public Document Pack



Pendleton Roundabout Road Traffic Accident (RTA) Scheme 

5h Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Liberty House and the Foyer plus provision to support No Wrong Door 
Model 

(Pages 127 - 138)

5i Request for Approval to go to market to identify a Managing Agent for 
100 Embankment 

(Pages 139 - 142)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 25 March 2020 in the Boardroom, Civic 
Centre, Salford City Council, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Procurement Board
19 February 2020

Meeting commenced: 10:03

Meeting ended: 10:48

Present
Councillors Boshell and Hinds (in the chair)

In Attendance
Alison Burnett Head of Work and Skills
Simon Cook Place Directorate
Greg Durkin Planning and Development Worker
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Anthony Hilton Head of Strategic Procurement
Gareth Hughes Place Directorate
Andy Stockton Group Leader – Landscape Design
Richard Tindall Senior Engineer
Perry Twigg Urban Design Manager
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services

1. Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor, Paul Dennett and Councillor 
Merry. 

2. Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the last meeting 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2020 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters arising 
There were no matters arising.

Decision Items - Part 1 (Open to the public)

5. Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Advice and Information Services 
Item deferred.

6. Request for Approval - Contract Award - New Classroom Block at Springwood Primary 
School 
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval for the direct 
award of a contract to a constructor partner to design and build of a new modular classroom block 
for Springwood Primary School, Irlam.

It was explained that the build would need to be completed in time for the September 2020 intake. 
Officers had examined closely the price and capability of a number of the companies on the NHS 
Shared Business Services Framework and had had discussions with them.  It was explained that the 
final price would be agreed shortly and Procurement Board would be asked to approve the final 
price at that time.

The Board noted that timescales were often quoted as the reason for a direct award rather than a 
mini-competition.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Resolved: that, the City Mayor be recommended to approve the following:

1. The direct award of the following Stage One contract for reasons of urgency for a project 
approved under the current schools basic need corporate capital programme in accordance with:

(i) the outcome of the (Stage 1) procurement process, conducted through the NHS Shared 
Business Services Framework, to directly award the contract to MTX Contracts Limited as 
constructor partner to design and build a new modular classroom block for Springwood 
Primary School (Craig Hall site).  

(ii)  delegated officers acting on behalf of Salford City Council progress with the constructor 
partner in selecting a design and finalising costs for the delivery of the school in line with 
the agreed budget as Stage 2 of the procurement process.

(iii) a pre-construction agreement be issued to cover the period of time between 20 January 
2020 up to when the formal contract is executed. 

(iv) interim payments be made to MTX Contracts Limited under the terms and conditions of 
the pre-construction agreement for advance works costs accrued up to a value of 
£1,629,040.00 pending the agreement of a final contract price under the Stage 2 
process.

7. Request for Approval - Contract Award - Renewal of the Timber Cornice and Associated 
Roof Repairs Work at Salford Museum and Art Gallery
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 
contract for the renewal of the timber cornice and associated roof repairs works at Salford Museum 
and Art Gallery. 

The Board welcomed the commitment of the selected contractor to employ a year 1 NVQ apprentice 
as part of their commitment to local training and upskilling and asked for the progress of this 
apprenticeship to be monitored and reported back to the council at the end of year one.

Resolved , that:

1) A 10 weeks’ contract be awarded to Schofield and Sons Limited for timber cornice and associated 
roof repairs at Salford Museum and Art Gallery, at a contract award price of £228,329.00, with a 
total contract value including fees and approved QRA of £260,000.00, and

2) the Social Value commitment included in the tender submission from Schofield and Sons Limited 
be monitored and reported back to the council.

8. Request for Approval - Appointment of Two Project and Programme Managers to take a 
Client Lead on Grant Funded Infrastructure Projects
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking a 12 months’ extension of 
the appointment of two appropriately skilled consultant project and programme managers to 
provide support in connection with the city council's workload of grant funded infrastructure 
projects.

It was confirmed that the appointments were cost neutral to the council as the costs were claimed 
back from TfGM.  The council was under pressure to deliver a range of infrastructure projects, 
particularly through the GM Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund and these could not be 
successfully delivered without this project and programme management resource.

Resolved: that, a 12 months’ extension of the appointment of two appropriately skilled consultant 
project and programme managers be approved, in order to provide support in connection with the 
city council's workload of grant funded infrastructure projects.

Page 2



9. Request for Approval to go out to Tender - Salford Bolton Network Improvements - 
Delivery Package 2 - Madams Wood Rd, A580 / Worsley Road and A580 / Lancaster Rd
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to proceed with 
the procurement of a contractor for delivery package 2, Madams Wood Road,  A580 East Lancs Road 
/ Worsley Road and A580 East Lancs Road / Lancaster Road of the Salford Bolton Network 
Improvement Scheme.

It was confirmed that each of the schemes had been discussed with relevant ward members and it 
was agreed that elected members would be provided with a briefing note to enable them to 
reassure local residents about the anticipated benefits of the schemes.

Resolved that: approval be granted for the following works to be tendered to establish a 
construction price and facilitate the submission of a full business case by TfGM to GMCA :

SBNI delivery package 2;

SBNI reserve scheme package - Madams Wood Road;

SBNI reserve scheme package - A580 /  Worsley Road junction and A580 / Lancaster Road, and 

That the final sign-off of the delivery agreement with TfGM & GMCA for the delivery of the works be 
delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the council's legal team.

10. Request for Approval to go out to Competition for Swinton Greenway Cycling and Walking 
Scheme
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval for Swinton 
Greenway cycling and walking scheme to be procured in accordance with the council's contractual 
standing orders through an existing framework. 

It was acknowledged that there were concerns about motorbikes travelling at speed on greenways 
but there was a balance to be struck to enable access for people with disabilities.

It was confirmed that two years’ maintenance would be built into the contract.

Resolved:  that, authority be granted for Swinton Greenway cycling and walking scheme to be 
procured in accordance with the council's contractual standing orders through an existing 
framework.

11. Request for Approval - Award of Contracts - Trafford Road improvements Scheme - 
Enabling Works and Main Works
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to appoint 
contractors to enable the works for the Trafford Road improvement scheme to commence.

It was confirmed that Social Value made up 20% of the tender evaluation score and the successful 
tenderers both scored well. Eurovia Infrastructure Ltd had already pledged to support the City 
Mayor’s Employment Standards Charter and enquiries would be made to ascertain whether the 
same was the case for John Sisk and Son Limited. 

Resolved: that,  subject to Greater Manchester Combined Authority approval of full business case 
and delivery agreement, the City Mayor be recommended to approve that:

1 A five month’ contract be awarded to Eurovia Infrastructure Limited to undertake the enabling 
works package along Trafford road, Salford, at a cost of £306,898.36.

2 An 18 month’ contract be awarded to John Sisk and Son limited, subject to Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority approval of full business case and delivery agreement, at a cost of £8,796,674, 
to undertake the main works along Trafford Road, Salford.

Page 3



3. The creation of purchase orders be approved to enable payments to be made to the contractors 
above.

4 The creation of purchase orders totalling £1,192,000.00 be approved to enable payments to TfGM 
to be made for traffic signal works, SMART technology, VMS and CCTV installation and bus shelter 
relocation works, and 

5. A risk allocation be approved, totalling £1,916,810.00, based on the quantitative risk assessment 
QRA which has been produced, which can be drawn down on by the project team.

12 Exclusion of the Public
Resolved: that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as specified in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) 
to the Act.

Decision Items - Part 2 (Closed to the public)

13. Request for Approval - Contract Award - Projects within the Skills and Work Programme
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking an exception to 
contractual standing orders to allow a number of contracts within the skills and work programme to 
be awarded. 

It was confirmed that all of the contractors involved had previously signed up to the City Mayor’s 
Employment Standards Charter.

Resolved: that,

1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders as permitted within the City Council Constitution be 
approved for the following reasons: Delivers Best Value to the Council  and the execution of works or 
the supply of goods and services is required so urgently as not to permit compliance with the 
requirements of competition. 

2) the award of selected contracts within the Skills and Work Commissioned programme for the 
period: 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021, be approved, subject to the confirmation of final budgets 
for 2020/21. 

Page 4



Part 1
ITEM NO.

__________________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (Place)
__________________________________________________________________________

TO THE PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON 11 March 2020
__________________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Approval to award the Contract for the renewal of non-half hourly (NHH) electricity 
supply
__________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That Procurement Board approves adopting the 48 month renewal offer for NHH 
electricity contract with Scottish & Southern Electric

2. That Procurement Board accept 100% green energy contract for the renewal.

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project NHH contract for the supply of electricity

Name of Successful Contractor Scottish & Southern Electric (SSE)
Supplier Registration Number SSE – 03757502

Type of organisation Public Limited Company
Status of Organisation Non-SME

Contract Value NHH Electricity - £671,201 Per Annum
Contract Duration 48 Months

Contract Start Date 01/04/2020
Contract End Date 31/03/2024

Optional Extension Period 0 months
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? N/A

Contact Officer (Name & number) Majid Maqbool 0161 607 6987
Lead Service Group Place Directorate

How the contract was procured? Manchester Framework
Framework Details (where applicable) TC970 – Multi-supplier Electricity Framework

Funding Source Revenue budget & schools budgets

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The current NHH electricity contract was agreed as of April 2018 for a period of 2 years and is 
therefore up for renewal as of April 2020.

The purpose of this report is to outline the procurement strategy being utilised to re-procure the 
contract and to seek approval to agree the new contract duration.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Appendix 1 – NHH electricity contract breakdown at site level
__________________________________________________________________________
 
KEY DECISION:  

YES 
__________________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:

1 Background

2.1 Salford City Council has utilised the Manchester Multi-supplier Electricity framework set 
up by Manchester in order to carry out the renewal of the electricity contract. The 
framework commenced as of 1 November 2018 for an initial period of 1 year, followed 
by 3 single year options to extend, which have been taken for each year to date.

2.2  The Multi-supplier Framework Agreement allows the flexibility to enter into a call-off 
agreement by a mixture of direct award and further competition. Consequently, it is 
anticipated that Salford Council will use a mixture of both strategies and the flexibility 
this brings to secure the best future prices possible.

2.3 A total of 4 suppliers are on the framework for the sub 100kW electricity sites, with the 
SSE being ranked as the winning supplier, as per the evaluation weighting shown 
below.

Evaluation Weighting 65% Price  15% Quality 20% Social Value

Company Name SSE Total Haven Engie

Weighted Price Score 65.00 64.40 62.95 62.69
Weighted Quality Score 14.64 15.00 12.14 11.07
Total Weighted Social Value 20.00 18.25 19.00 13.50
Total Weighted Score 99.64 97.65 94.09 87.26
Ranking 1 2 3 4

Page 6



2 Energy Purchasing Strategy (Direct Award / Mini competition)

2.1 The present supplier for direct award for the sub 100kW contract under the Manchester 
framework is Scottish and Southern Electric (SSE).  This is also the current supplier for 
the existing contract that was also procured via the former single Manchester supplier 
electricity framework. 

2.2 Under present contract arrangements, Salford council is in the process of AMR meter 
roll out across the whole portfolio for the sub 100kW contract and as such it makes 
sense to continue with this roll out and thereby use the direct award strategy to allow for 
the AMR roll out to be completed.   

2.3 With the present market conditions showing a downward trend of wholesale prices and a 
continued upward trend of non-commodity elements, the overall unit cost of electricity 
has increased since 2018, albeit the increase being marginal when compared to 
historical price increases at point of renewal.  Indicative prices obtained prior to the 
tender renewal process, coupled with market commentary reports suggest a longer 
contract duration to offer best value as well as budget certainty.

3 Electricity Markey Commentary 

3.1 Since the acceptance of the present electricity contract in 2018, wholesale electricity 
prices trend has overall been downward, with an overall reduction as shown in the graph 
below.

One of the reasons for the most recent continued downward trend is the increase in 
wind generation, which has provided between 20-33% of grid requirements for most of 
January. Electricity prices also in general follow gas prices, which have seen a 
significant reduction due to oil prices being 18% lower than at peak of $70 a barrel, as 
well as the UK gas system being well supplied. The downward market trend suggests a 
longer contract duration will be better given that the market is more than likely to start 
moving upwards over the next 24 months.

3.2 The wholesale price of current contract makes up approximately 40% of the unit 
electricity price of current contract, with the remainder 60% being non commodity 
elements as detailed below.

Page 7



3.3 Whilst wholesale price has reduced and is at its lowest level since 2016, the non-
commodity elements have increased year on year, with the overall increase being 
greater than the reduction in wholesale price and therefore an overall increase in total 
contract renewal costs. 

4 Financial Analysis

4.1 Prices were obtained for 24, 36, and 48 month contract durations, with all prices being 
100% green energy. Prices for 12 month renewal were dismissed in light of the 
downward trend of wholesale prices. 

4.2 The NHH electricity contract comprises of schools and corporate sites, as detailed in 
Appendix 1. A summary of the overall percentage price increase for the contract 
between corporate and schools and as a whole is as follows:

24 Month Renewal 36 Month Renewal 48 Month Renewal
SCC Corporate 9.46% 11.04% 13.18%
Schools 8.52% 10.14% 12.35%
Trust 8.65% 10.27% 12.45%

Total contract 8.40% 10.01% 12.19%

A more detailed financial analysis at site level for each category is provided in Appendix 
1 – NHH electricity contract renewal cost breakdown at site level.

4.3 Present market conditions show there is relatively little volatility in the market with 
wholesale prices at their lowest levels since 2016. At the same time, we have also 
witnessed steady continued increases in Government regulated non-commodity, pass 
through charges. These pass-through charges cover the cost of transporting the energy 
and provide support for Government initiatives and interventions in the energy industry, 
such as climate change policies.

4.4 The non-commodity element of an electricity bill now represents the largest proportion of 
the total bill, with the renewal contract comprising of approximately 65% non-commodity 
costs and 35% electricity commodity costs.

4.5 Both the falling wholesale prices and the increasing non-commodity elements mean that 
the overall electricity charges will be higher, but the downward wholesale price trend has 
helped to mitigate the overall price increase. Analysis of the contract durations have 
confirmed a marginal difference between 24 and 48 month durations of 3.79% (inclusive 
of green energy levy).  With the typical average annual energy inflationary increase of 

Page 8



5% to 6%, a 48 month contract duration offers the best value in present market 
conditions, as well as ensuring budget certainty.

5 Social Value

5.1 Due to the remote nature of energy supplies, there are very limited opportunities to 
deliver social value to the Council through the delivery of this contract. All bidders have 
been assessed via the Manchester Framework to ensure they meet the minimum 
trading standards set by central government by adopting the newly revised standard 
supplier questionnaire which amongst other things ensures suppliers meet criteria 
regarding modern slavery, employee welfare and collective representation. 

5.2 The option to procure a 100% green energy contract is available via the Manchester 
framework and SSE is able to provide this.  However, following the Government 
announcement in 2015 for the removal of Climate Change Levy (CCL) exemption, green 
energy contracts will attract a premium.  SSE have confirmed the premium to be 
0.087p/kWh, which based on total electricity contract volume amounts to £4,179 per 
annum.  Under a green energy contract, SSE will provide certification that the purchased 
electricity has been generated exclusively through SSE’s portfolio of wind and hydro 
assets.  

Procurement of a green energy contract will show the Council’s support for the 
generation of electricity from renewable sources and its commitment to corporate social 
responsibility. It is therefore an effective and high profile way of demonstrating 
leadership in combating climate change.

5.3 Whilst electricity prices are predicted to continue to rise in the long term, the Energy 
Management Team is actively involved in implementing all measures available in 
reducing the overall electricity consumption.  As well as the installation of AMR meters 
to aid in better monitoring and targeting, the team has implemented other measures, 
mainly via the Council’s Local Authority Carbon Management Plan, including:

 Installation of voltage optimisation units in order to harmonise the electricity coming into 
the site. Sites where this measure has been implemented include Civic centre, Turnpike 
House, Higher Broughton Community Hub and a number of leisure centres.

 Installation of new lighting as part of major office refurbishments or lighting retrofits in 
order to install more energy efficient lighting coupled with better control via passive infra 
red (PIR) sensors.

 Installation of variable speed drives on pool water pumps at all leisure centres as well as 
on all office buildings that have air handling plants.

 Use of renewable energy sources, including solar PV and solar hot water. 
 Implementation of behavioural change programmes to inform and educate end users of 

energy on what actions can be taken to reduce usage.

All of the above and continued energy saving measures will aid towards achieving the 
council’s carbon neutral target by 2038.

6 Recommendation

6.1 The Procurement Board is requested to consider and accept the 48 month contract 
which will produce annual costs in the region of £671,201.

6.2 The procurement Board is requested to accept a 100% green energy contract at a 
relatively small premium in order to show the council’s commitment and leadership in 

Page 9



encouraging generation from renewable sources and therefore combating climate 
change. 
The contract period commences 1 April 2020 for 48 months’ duration, thereby expiring 
on 31 March 2024.

The framework supplier will also provide internet billing and electronic data interchange 
with Salford City Council which will make it much easier for the payments to be 
processed, as well as allowing data to be imported directly in to Salford’s Systemslink 
Energy Management System.

__________________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Council’s medium term financial plan and securing VFM outcomes
Carbon Reduction
__________________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: This procurement is for energy 
supply for Council’s buildings and schools
__________________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

Wholesale electricity prices change on a daily basis and any delay in the contract renewal will 
have financial implications in terms of significantly higher out of contract rates being charged. 
__________________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING: General fund revenue budget and schools budgets.
__________________________________________________________________________

 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the execution of 
works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract may be subject to legal challenge 
from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by 
mini competition in accordance with the process set out in the Manchester City Council multi-
supplier framework as detailed in the report, which itself was procured in accordance with PCR 
and CSO’s, which will help to ensure that the risk of challenge to the proposed awards is 
minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is extremely unlikely to be successful. 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement / evaluation process 
a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, as and when 
those services are required. If they are required then the Council will undertake an exercise to 
call off the services from one or more of the providers who have been selected to be on the 
framework and this may be through any number of ways such as mini-competition or direct 
allocation, depending on the circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council 
and the chosen provider/s. 

The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework agreement to 
ensure the procurement process is compliant. The procurement procedures therefore appear 
robust and compliant with the requirements of CSO’s and PCR.
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Jemma Singleton, Finance Officer Level 2, ext 2578

Page 10



As highlighted in the main body of the report, the 48 month contract with SSE will produce 
annual costs of £671,201 of which £246,927.35 relates to Corporate Properties. 

The current Corporate Property contract is £218,180.08 and therefore a 13.18% increase for 
the 48 months duration, which is marginal on an annual basis (see appendix 1). A longer 
contract duration offers best value as well as budget certainty.

These estimated additional costs for 2020/21 have been included within the assumptions made 
as part of the budget setting process.
__________________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Heather Stanton, Category Manager ext 6241

This exercise has been conducted within the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders for the 
supply of electricity.

The Manchester Multi-supplier Electricity framework has been used to carry out the renewal of 
the electricity contract.  Benchmarking has been completed between the 4 providers on the 
framework to obtain the best prices possible.  Wholesale prices are relatively low at the moment 
however, the non-commodity elements have increased year on year.  All prices obtained are 
green energy which attracts a premium but it was felt that a 48 month contract presented the 
best value.  Salford council are looking at various ways to reduce the energy consumption to 
offset this premium whilst demonstrating leadership in combating climate change
__________________________________________________________________________

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by Majid Maqbool, Energy Manager ext 6987

The contract agreed is 100% green, therefore showing Salford City Council’s support 
for the generation of electricity from renewable sources to tackle climate change. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
__________________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Majid Maqbool TEL. NO. 0161 6076987
__________________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards
__________________________________________________________________________

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – NHH electricity contract breakdown at site level

Site Name Directorate kWh  Current Cost  24 Months Renewal prices   36 Months Renewal prices   48 Months Renewal prices  
Wingate Road Family Centre Childrens Services 8,102  £         1,142.81  £                                1,225.52  £                                1,240.19  £                                1,262.51 
St Georges RC HS Childrens Services 5,570  £            793.31  £                                   836.47  £                                   846.61  £                                   861.96 
Sahal Court EPH Community & Social Health 7,024  £            980.94  £                                1,034.39  £                                1,047.15  £                                1,066.48 
Ingledene Childrens Services 30,145  £         3,964.47  £                                4,226.02  £                                4,280.36  £                                4,363.08 
Swinton Cemetery Env Services 302  £            113.53  £                                   163.79  £                                   164.41  £                                   165.36 
Harriet Street Playing Fields SCL 3,914  £            579.62  £                                   611.05  £                                   618.22  £                                   629.02 
Newcroft Childrens Home Childrens Services 17,210  £         2,295.34  £                                2,420.91  £                                2,452.00  £                                2,499.24 
Sahal Court EPH Community & Social Health 660  £            214.17  £                                   212.52  £                                   213.79  £                                   215.72 
Northfield Community Home Childrens Services 8,686  £         1,195.40  £                                1,305.02  £                                1,320.73  £                                1,344.65 
Central Locality Team (FRM Cornerstone Project) Childrens Services 10,552  £         1,436.19  £                                1,514.62  £                                1,533.73  £                                1,562.72 
Agecroft Cemetery & Crematorium Env Services 11,515  £         1,560.46  £                                1,690.10  £                                1,710.91  £                                1,742.58 
Unmetered Supplies Sustainable Regeneration 4,148  £            579.55  £                                   616.76  £                                   625.06  £                                   635.80 
Guild Hall Bowls Pavillion Env Services 5,932  £            807.03  £                                   925.44  £                                   937.57  £                                   954.00 
St Mary's Park Sports Hut Env Services 6,592  £            887.90  £                                1,013.14  £                                1,026.61  £                                1,044.85 
Worsley Courthouse Library SCL 8,806  £         1,159.21  £                                1,307.34  £                                1,325.30  £                                1,349.63 
2 Mocha Parade Community & Social Health 1,779  £            298.12  £                                   329.19  £                                   332.92  £                                   337.90 
Library Irlam SCL 33,154  £         4,142.81  £                                4,498.30  £                                4,565.73  £                                4,656.98 
Winton Park Messroom (Depot) Env Services 3,436  £            501.17  £                                   593.78  £                                   600.83  £                                   610.40 
Library Cadishead SCL 23,872  £         3,059.79  £                                3,309.27  £                                3,357.85  £                                3,423.62 
Vehicle Storage Depot Env Services 123  £              95.19  £                                   109.14  £                                   153.87  £                                   154.33 
Parr Fold Park Bowls Hut Env Services 5,887  £            801.51  £                                   875.06  £                                   887.14  £                                   903.40 
Guild Hall Community Centre SCL 10,733  £         1,395.34  £                                1,563.40  £                                1,585.27  £                                1,614.90 
Chestnut Avenue Depot Env Services 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
Wardley Community Centre SCL 8,167  £         1,080.90  £                                1,222.43  £                                1,239.09  £                                1,261.67 
Swinton Cemetery Env Services 451  £            135.39  £                                   152.73  £                                   153.76  £                                   155.08 
7 Wesley Street Sustainable Regeneration 30,671  £         3,838.54  £                                4,212.76  £                                4,275.10  £                                4,359.57 
Victoria Park Lodge & Depot Env Services 3,348  £            490.38  £                                   582.08  £                                   588.96  £                                   598.29 
West Dene Community Centre Childrens Services 15,803  £         2,016.62  £                                2,237.10  £                                2,269.26  £                                2,312.84 
Newtown Park Playing Fields Env Services 2,132  £            341.38  £                                   420.50  £                                   424.91  £                                   430.89 
Rabbit Hill Sports Pavillion SCL 4,495  £            630.94  £                                   734.50  £                                   743.70  £                                   756.18 
Valley Community Centre SCL 24,058  £         3,028.19  £                                3,334.03  £                                3,382.94  £                                3,449.22 
Beech Farm Playing Fields SCL 4,991  £            691.72  £                                   800.40  £                                   810.62  £                                   824.46 
Beesley Green Community Centre SCL 9,924  £         1,296.21  £                                1,455.90  £                                1,476.13  £                                1,503.54 
Albert Park Env Services 5,129  £            708.63  £                                   818.74  £                                   829.23  £                                   843.46 
60 (aka 120) Great Clowes Street Childrens Services 30,364  £         3,800.92  £                                4,171.97  £                                4,233.69  £                                4,317.31 
Cliff Playing Fields Pavillion SCL 2,194  £            348.97  £                                   384.34  £                                   388.91  £                                   395.03 
Car Park, Trinity Env Services 43,947  £         5,465.39  £                                5,932.48  £                                6,021.81  £                                6,142.74 
Acton Square Office Env Services 7,117  £            952.24  £                                1,038.51  £                                1,053.07  £                                1,072.73 
Ordsall Hall Museum SCL 41,133  £         5,120.56  £                                5,602.95  £                                5,686.53  £                                5,799.77 
Buile Hill Park Bowls Hut Env Services 3,179  £            469.67  £                                   559.63  £                                   566.16  £                                   575.02 
St Luke's CE PS (OLD) Childrens Services 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
St Luke's CE PS (OLD) Childrens Services 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
Office Area Precinct Sustainable Regeneration 233  £            108.67  £                                   123.76  £                                   124.35  £                                   125.07 
Langworthy Park Veteran's Pavilion Env Services 3,464  £            504.60  £                                   597.50  £                                   604.61  £                                   614.25 
Pavilion Stott Lane SCL 1,616  £            278.14  £                                   351.93  £                                   355.29  £                                   359.86 
Lightoaks Park Env Services 137  £              96.91  £                                   155.40  £                                   155.76  £                                   156.26 

P
age 13



The Height Library SCL 18,510  £         2,348.34  £                                2,552.41  £                                2,590.10  £                                2,641.09 
Irlams o th'Height YC SCL 2,363  £            369.68  £                                   406.80  £                                   411.71  £                                   418.29 
Bolton Road Bowls Pavilion Env Services 4,247  £            600.55  £                                   701.54  £                                   710.24  £                                   722.04 
Barr Hill Football Pavillion SCL 3,857  £            552.76  £                                   649.72  £                                   657.63  £                                   668.35 
Eccles (Peel Green) Cemetery & Crematorium Env Services 958  £            197.51  £                                   220.10  £                                   222.16  £                                   224.88 
Winton Library SCL 18,398  £         2,334.61  £                                2,581.93  £                                2,619.35  £                                2,670.07 
Alexandra House Centre Community & Social Health 48,855  £         6,066.81  £                                6,629.05  £                                6,728.31  £                                6,862.78 
Patricroft Park Pavilion Env Services 2,384  £            372.26  £                                   453.99  £                                   458.91  £                                   465.58 
Eccles Recreation Ground Env Services 5,257  £            724.31  £                                   791.35  £                                   802.14  £                                   816.68 
St Marys Rd Auto Air Quality Monitoring System Env Services 62,489  £         7,737.52  £                                8,396.34  £                                8,523.31  £                                8,695.24 
Boddan Lodge (Pavilion) Env Services 14,355  £         1,839.18  £                                2,000.29  £                                2,029.55  £                                2,069.11 
Princes Park Bowling Club Env Services 512  £            142.86  £                                   160.83  £                                   161.99  £                                   163.48 
Mode Wheel Locks Sustainable Regeneration 8,006  £         1,061.18  £                                1,156.64  £                                1,173.01  £                                1,195.11 
Eccles (Peel Green) Cemetery & Crematorium Env Services 48  £              86.00  £                                   143.58  £                                   143.76  £                                   144.01 
St Mary's Park Sports Hut Env Services 262  £            112.23  £                                   172.01  £                                   172.63  £                                   173.47 
Barr Hill Football Pavillion SCL 11,855  £         1,532.83  £                                1,712.49  £                                1,736.64  £                                1,769.36 
Ellesmere Park Changing Rooms SCL 11,216  £         1,454.53  £                                1,627.58  £                                1,650.43  £                                1,681.39 
Swinton Moorside Children's Centre Childrens Services 33,812  £         4,223.44  £                                4,630.14  £                                4,698.86  £                                4,791.96 
Wharton Pavilion Changing Rooms SCL 576  £            150.70  £                                   213.74  £                                   214.99  £                                   216.69 
Bridgewater Street YC SCL 39,166  £         4,879.52  £                                5,341.58  £                                5,421.17  £                                5,528.99 
One Stop Shop Sustainable Regeneration 9,466  £         1,294.48  £                                1,395.04  £                                1,414.34  £                                1,440.49 
St Georges RC HS Childrens Services 6,880  £            977.60  £                                1,051.37  £                                1,065.46  £                                1,084.50 
Little Hulton EYC Childrens Services 90,095  £       11,174.76  £                             12,108.98  £                             12,292.00  £                             12,539.88 
Little Hulton Library SCL 19,106  £         2,421.37  £                                2,676.01  £                                2,714.87  £                                2,767.53 
Prescott House Community & Social Health 45,805  £         5,747.46  £                                6,223.73  £                                6,316.83  £                                6,442.92 
Chestnut Avenue Depot Env Services 0  £            134.52  £                                   137.20  £                                   137.28  £                                   137.40 
Worsley Courthouse Env Services 41,964  £         5,276.79  £                                5,713.38  £                                5,798.64  £                                5,914.16 
Boothstown Community Centre SCL 19,565  £         2,532.02  £                                2,737.00  £                                2,776.79  £                                2,830.72 
Operations Tower Salford Quays Sustainable Regeneration 4,902  £            735.21  £                                   788.54  £                                   798.61  £                                   812.21 
Helly Hansen Watersports Centre SCL 70,930  £         8,826.28  £                                9,562.34  £                                9,706.45  £                                9,901.62 
Langworthy Park Veteran's Pavilion Env Services 31  £              83.92  £                                   141.32  £                                   141.46  £                                   141.67 
Holly Bank Hostel Community & Social Health 47,422  £         5,945.61  £                                6,438.60  £                                6,534.98  £                                6,665.51 
Cadishead Bowling Pavilion SCL 19  £              82.45  £                                      95.32  £                                      95.48  £                                      95.62 
Winton Nursery Centre Childrens Services 44,508  £         5,588.53  £                                6,051.42  £                                6,141.85  £                                6,264.37 
Patricroft Park Pavilion Env Services 1,904  £            367.84  £                                   390.16  £                                   394.15  £                                   399.50 
Rainbow Rooms Community Centre SCL 30,998  £         3,878.61  £                                4,256.21  £                                4,319.22  £                                4,404.58 
A V Roe House Childrens Services 15,872  £         2,079.47  £                                2,246.23  £                                2,278.57  £                                2,322.34 
Clowes Park Mess Room Env Services 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
Belvedere EYC Childrens Services 47,727  £         5,982.99  £                                6,479.12  £                                6,576.13  £                                6,707.50 
Hershel Weiss Children & Family Cntr Childrens Services 18,752  £         2,377.99  £                                2,584.57  £                                2,622.75  £                                2,674.40 
Ordsall Park Workmens Hut Env Services 7,662  £         1,019.02  £                                1,110.93  £                                1,126.60  £                                1,147.75 
Street Lighting (metered) Feeder Pillar Supplies Sustainable Regeneration 2,335  £            366.25  £                                   447.47  £                                   452.29  £                                   458.84 
Boothsbank Park Env Services 4,185  £            647.35  £                                   693.26  £                                   701.88  £                                   713.51 
Clifton Green YC Childrens Services 14,221  £         1,792.25  £                                1,979.18  £                                2,006.40  £                                2,044.28 
Irlam Youth Centre Childrens Services 1,504  £            286.05  £                                   327.57  £                                   330.54  £                                   334.56 
St Mary's Park Sports Hut Env Services 4,062  £            426.14  £                                   514.11  £                                   519.84  £                                   528.04 
Brookhouse Community Centre & Changing Rooms SCL 8,727  £            837.13  £                                   964.75  £                                   977.10  £                                   994.73 
Guild Hall Bowls Pavillion Env Services 8,137  £            839.55  £                                   907.75  £                                   919.27  £                                   935.71 
2 Mocha Parade Community & Social Health 207  £              98.36  £                                      97.32  £                                      97.61  £                                      98.03 

P
age 14



Worsley Courthouse Library SCL 29,524  £         2,681.18  £                                2,973.74  £                                3,015.62  £                                3,075.26 
Library Cadishead SCL 2,610  £            310.06  £                                   373.85  £                                   377.51  £                                   382.78 
Library Irlam SCL 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
Blackleach Reservoir Env Services 10,627  £         1,338.95  £                                1,502.92  £                                1,523.69  £                                1,552.14 
Office St Simon Street (Old Blackfriars AHO) Sustainable Regeneration 35,406  £         4,418.77  £                                4,965.37  £                                5,039.49  £                                5,140.48 
King Street Bowls Pavilion Env Services 8,824  £            997.31  £                                1,138.23  £                                1,153.22  £                                1,174.22 
Peel Green House Childrens Services 306  £            170.09  £                                   175.88  £                                   176.52  £                                   177.44 
Toilets Eccles Precinct Env Services 1,314  £            247.17  £                                   273.93  £                                   276.54  £                                   280.37 
Clifton Community Centre SCL 72,695  £         8,739.51  £                                9,473.51  £                                9,614.54  £                                9,808.33 
The Grange Childrens Services 13,158  £         1,648.11  £                                1,737.07  £                                1,761.94  £                                1,796.20 
Car Park, Eccles Multi-Storey Env Services 40,886  £         4,866.50  £                                5,275.97  £                                5,353.59  £                                5,460.38 
Granville (EPH Stanhurst) Community & Social Health 77,296  £         9,349.75  £                             10,132.14  £                             10,283.60  £                             10,491.03 
Bethel Children's Home Childrens Services 17,319  £         2,177.83  £                                2,310.07  £                                2,343.59  £                                2,389.66 
Peel Park Pavilion Env Services 4,430  £            666.60  £                                   669.70  £                                   678.54  £                                   690.62 
Street Lighting (metered) Feeder Pillar Supplies Sustainable Regeneration 9,887  £         1,172.91  £                                1,281.99  £                                1,299.95  £                                1,324.75 
Street Lighting (metered) Feeder Pillar Supplies Sustainable Regeneration 46,490  £         5,443.25  £                                5,962.58  £                                6,050.30  £                                6,171.34 
Street Lighting (metered) Feeder Pillar Supplies Sustainable Regeneration 13,009  £         1,531.94  £                                1,716.39  £                                1,740.23  £                                1,773.15 
Whittle Street Children's Home Childrens Services 10,856  £         1,399.71  £                                1,567.31  £                                1,589.02  £                                1,618.77 
Clifton Country Park Visitors Centre Env Services 22,660  £         2,604.19  £                                2,884.31  £                                2,924.81  £                                2,982.12 
Total Corporate  1,722,104  £  218,180.08  £                           238,810.82  £                           242,261.76  £                           246,927.35 
Corporate Increase (£)     £                             20,630.74  £                             24,081.67  £                             28,747.27 
Corporate Increase (%)    9.46% 11.04% 13.18%

Site Name Directorate kWh  Cost(£)  24 Months Renewal prices   36 Months Renewal prices   48 Months Renewal prices  
Salford Open Learning (ex River2/Charlestown PS) School 4,890  £            705.57  £                                   743.91  £                                   752.83  £                                   766.31 
Brentnall County PS School 4,138  £            608.53  £                                   685.94  £                                   693.47  £                                   704.93 
Monton Green PS School 3,243  £            493.04  £                                   564.12  £                                   570.03  £                                   579.04 
St Georges CE PS School 48  £              86.00  £                                      99.18  £                                      99.40  £                                      99.61 
Grosvenor Road PS School 53,196  £         6,653.16  £                                7,205.88  £                                7,313.95  £                                7,460.36 
St Paul's CE PS (Heathside) excl LKS2 School 71,744  £         8,871.63  £                                9,626.14  £                                9,771.90  £                                9,969.28 
St Philip's RC PS School 56,149  £         6,960.62  £                                7,598.28  £                                7,712.34  £                                7,866.87 
St Paul's (NEW WINDSOR) CE PS School 3,651  £            527.51  £                                   622.34  £                                   629.84  £                                   640.00 
Broadwalk Centre PRU School 129,070  £       15,896.36  £                             17,243.62  £                             17,505.75  £                             17,860.78 
St John's CE PS School 44,144  £         5,489.53  £                                5,958.65  £                                6,048.39  £                                6,169.86 
Westwood Park PS School 20,358  £         2,574.79  £                                2,797.97  £                                2,839.42  £                                2,895.48 
Moorfield PS School 12,495  £         1,611.26  £                                1,797.54  £                                1,822.98  £                                1,857.46 
Marlborough Road PS (Academy) School 17,250  £         2,193.94  £                                2,429.38  £                                2,464.48  £                                2,512.04 
Hilton Lane PS School 41,518  £         5,167.74  £                                5,609.71  £                                5,694.11  £                                5,808.37 
James Brindley PS School 76,127  £         9,463.12  £                             10,252.96  £                             10,407.57  £                             10,617.04 
North Walkden PS School 57,237  £         7,148.34  £                                7,742.85  £                                7,859.12  £                                8,016.65 
St Paul's CE PS (Crompton Street) School 57,207  £         7,144.67  £                                7,738.87  £                                7,855.08  £                                8,012.52 
Wardley CE PS School 45,135  £         5,665.36  £                                6,134.74  £                                6,226.44  £                                6,350.68 
Mossfield PS School 137,103  £       16,935.12  £                             18,355.45  £                             18,633.85  £                             19,011.00 
St Mark's RC PS School 84,408  £       10,477.88  £                             11,353.34  £                             11,524.76  £                             11,757.01 
St Peter's CE PS School 78,014  £         9,694.36  £                             10,503.70  £                             10,662.15  £                             10,876.81 
St Charles RC PS School 86,416  £       10,723.94  £                             11,620.16  £                             11,795.66  £                             12,033.43 
Boothstown Methodist Primary School 46,092  £         5,782.63  £                                6,261.90  £                                6,355.55  £                                6,482.42 
St Boniface RC PS School 50,924  £         6,374.75  £                                6,903.98  £                                7,007.44  £                                7,147.60 
Marlborough Road PS (Academy) School 64,326  £         8,017.03  £                                8,684.84  £                                8,815.50  £                                8,992.52 

P
age 15



St Thomas of Canterbury RC PS School 112,763  £       13,952.50  £                             15,121.15  £                             15,350.14  £                             15,660.35 
Brentnall County PS School 34,684  £         4,330.30  £                                4,746.01  £                                4,816.50  £                                4,912.00 
St Paul's CE PS (NEVILE RD) School 31,183  £         3,955.68  £                                4,280.80  £                                4,344.18  £                                4,430.05 
St Philip's RC PS School 11,063  £         1,490.18  £                                1,607.25  £                                1,629.79  £                                1,660.33 
St Philip's CE PS School 77,614  £         9,645.34  £                             10,450.55  £                             10,608.18  £                             10,821.74 
Cathedral School St Peter & John RC PS School 54,862  £         6,857.31  £                                7,427.26  £                                7,538.71  £                                7,689.70 
St Paul's (NEW WINDSOR) CE PS School 60,447  £         7,541.70  £                                8,169.36  £                                8,292.18  £                                8,458.53 
St Joseph's RC PS (ORDSALL) School 69,426  £         8,641.98  £                                9,362.53  £                                9,503.54  £                                9,694.58 
St Sebastian's RC PS School 76,511  £         9,455.78  £                             10,259.58  £                             10,415.02  £                             10,625.50 
St Mary's CE PS School 68,552  £         8,534.88  £                                9,246.39  £                                9,385.63  £                                9,574.27 
Cadishead PS School 92,220  £       11,435.16  £                             12,391.39  £                             12,578.68  £                             12,832.41 
St Teresa's RC PS School 52,191  £         6,530.01  £                                7,072.30  £                                7,178.37  £                                7,322.01 
St Teresa's RC PS School 21,691  £         2,738.14  £                                3,019.50  £                                3,063.61  £                                3,123.38 
Moorfield PS School 45,114  £         5,662.79  £                                6,131.95  £                                6,223.61  £                                6,347.79 
Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE PS School 106,201  £       13,148.39  £                             14,249.19  £                             14,464.86  £                             14,757.03 
Holy Cross & All Saints RC PS School 89,543  £       11,107.12  £                             12,035.67  £                             12,217.53  £                             12,463.89 
Christ Church CE PS (PATRICROFT) School 60,504  £         7,548.68  £                                8,176.97  £                                8,299.87  £                                8,466.38 
St Andrew's CE PS (Barton Lane) School 58,304  £         7,279.09  £                                7,884.60  £                                8,003.07  £                                8,163.53 
The Canterbury Centre PRU School 57,444  £         7,173.71  £                                7,770.36  £                                7,887.05  £                                8,045.14 
St Peter's CE PS SPARCS School 29,078  £         3,643.34  £                                4,001.08  £                                4,060.19  £                                4,140.28 
St Teresa's RC PS School 6,923  £            928.46  £                                1,012.73  £                                1,026.90  £                                1,046.02 
Grosvenor Road PS School 16,479  £         2,153.86  £                                2,326.93  £                                2,360.46  £                                2,405.90 
Springwood Primary School School 508  £            202.00  £                                   204.70  £                                   205.81  £                                   207.33 
Salford Open Learning (ex River2/Charlestown PS) School 51,804  £         5,817.68  £                                6,316.29  £                                6,412.91  £                                6,544.62 
Lower Kersal County PS School 31,590  £         2,905.76  £                                3,173.31  £                                3,218.13  £                                3,281.94 
Grosvenor Road PS School 0  £              80.12  £                                      92.80  £                                      92.92  £                                      93.00 
Hilton Lane Nursery School School 7,886  £            774.88  £                                   883.51  £                                   894.67  £                                   910.60 
St Georges CE PS School 58,947  £         5,315.99  £                                5,815.96  £                                5,899.66  £                                6,018.74 
Summerville PS School 54,888  £         6,621.30  £                                7,186.97  £                                7,294.66  £                                7,441.79 
Clarendon Road PS School 67,538  £         8,672.30  £                                9,387.38  £                                9,528.65  £                                9,721.22 
The Friars PS School 17,352  £         2,287.64  £                                2,483.56  £                                2,518.21  £                                2,567.74 
Dukesgate PS (Academy) School 82,909  £       10,061.82  £                             10,902.80  £                             11,065.47  £                             11,288.70 
St Andrew's Methodist PS School 60,657  £         7,444.11  £                                8,061.92  £                                8,181.63  £                                8,345.96 
Beech Street PS School 58,112  £         7,116.22  £                                7,707.42  £                                7,821.98  £                                7,979.08 
Irlam Endowed PS School 68,115  £         8,299.46  £                                8,991.36  £                                9,125.12  £                                9,308.73 
St Paul's CE PS (Heathside) LKS2 (exChildren'sCtr) School 22,784  £         2,708.55  £                                2,992.18  £                                3,035.20  £                                3,094.59 
Total Schools  3,060,770  £  377,329.06  £                           409,479.16  £                           415,605.13  £                           423,932.91 
Schools Increase (£)     £                             32,150.09  £                             38,276.07  £                             46,603.85 
Schools Increase (%)    8.52% 10.14% 12.35%

Site Name Directorate kWh  Cost(£)  24 Months Renewal prices   36 Months Renewal prices   48 Months Renewal prices  
Working Class Museum Trust 21,694  £         2,738.50  £                                2,975.50  £                                3,019.66  £                                3,079.40 
Trust Increase (£)     £                                   237.00  £                                   281.15  £                                   340.89 
Trust Increase (%)    8.65% 10.27% 12.45%

Total contract  £  598,247.65  £                           648,526.98  £                           658,148.04  £                           671,201.16 
Total contract increase (£)  £                             50,279.33  £                             59,900.39  £                             72,953.51 
Total contract increase (%) 8.40% 10.01% 12.19%

P
age 16



1

Part 1 – open to the 
Public

ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE AND PEOPLE

 
TO 

Procurement Board
 

11 March 2020

TITLE: Approval for an extension of contract for – Strategic Development of the     
VCSE sector through engagement, support and influence and promoting volunteering 
in Salford - Current provider Salford Community and Voluntary Services (SCVS)

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That Procurement Board notes that:

(a) The Strategic Director for People, in exercise of the powers conferred on 
this position by the City  Councils Constitution has  approved  the allocation 
of two year funding in respect of Safeguarding and Vocal (Non Integrated 
Funding)  £31,706 for 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 and £31,706 for the 
period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and has recommended that 
Procurement Board  approves the 12 month contract extension (1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021)

(b) The Chief Accountable Officer, NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning 
Group, in exercise of the powers conferred on this position has approved  
the allocation of two year funding in respect of Safeguarding, Vocal and 
Adult Social Care (Integrated Funding) £62,300 for 1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2021 and £62,300 for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and 
has recommended that Procurement Board approves the 12 month 
contract extension (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021) 

(c) That Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods  on 18 February 2020 
    has approved the budget provision of £171,562 in order to extend the         
    current contract for Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector,          
    Volunteering Brokerage and Training and Support to VCSE’s - 1 April    
    2020 to 31 March 2021 and budget provision of £171,562 for the period 1 
    April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and has recommended that Procurement    
    Board   approves the 12 month contract extension (1 April 2020 to 31      
    March 2021)

Page 17

Agenda Item 5b



2

2.          That Procurement Board:

(a)  Procurement is recommended as agreed on 8 March 2017 to approve the                              
extension of contract - Strategic Development of  VCSE's, Volunteer 
Brokerage, Training and Support to VCSE’s with an annual value of 
£171,562.  The contract will be delivered from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021

  
(b) Notes that a further report will be submitted to Procurement Board if           

appropriate in relation to extending the contract for a further 12 months 1 
April 2021 to 31 March 2022, subject to funding available and performance

 (c) Notes that the Strategic Director will determine the future of this service to          
ensure preparation is in hand for any further procurement of the service.

Detail required Example

Contract Reference
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector though 

engagement, support and influence and promoting 
volunteering in Salford

Name of Contractor Salford Community and Voluntary Sector ( SCVS)

Type of organisation Registered Charity

Status of Organisation SME

Value of Contract Extension £265,568 

£265,568

2020-2021

2021-2022

Existing Contract Term   1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020

Extension Period Requested 1 April 2020

1 April 2020

to 31 March 2022 ( 
budget provision 

only)

31 March 2021 
(contract extension)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Sandra Derbyshire Tel. 0161  793 2570

Lead Service Group Neighbourhoods and Communities

Funding Source Neighbourhoods and Communities/Integrated and 
Non Integrated Budget

Page 18



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

SCVS is the city-wide infrastructure organisation for the Voluntary, Community and 
Social Enterprise sector (VCSE); providing specialist information, advice, 
development support and opportunities for influence and collaboration within the city 
of Salford.  

As a membership organisation, SCVS’s key relationships lie with its member 
organisations and with the wider VCSE sector in Salford, which comprises of 1,513 
voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations. 

SCVS provides a range of services fully accessible at a local level through 
the Volunteer Centre functions, development / information, advice and guidance,1-2-
1 and group support, back office services, non accredited and bespoke training. Their 
considerable range of voice and influence work enabling VCSE’s to articulate their 
views provides a strategic interface between Salford VCSE’s and Salford public 
sector organisations as well as being engaged in GM level work. 

A review was undertaken in 2013/14 regarding the commissioning arrangements with 
SCVS. The focus of the review was to maximise the effectiveness of Council funding 
in providing a range of VCSE services in Salford and also to demonstrate that the 
Councils commissioning arrangements with SCVS represented value for money, that 
SCVS was the most appropriate organisation to deliver the required service and that 
funding was allocated in accordance with our rules and regulations for procurement. 
The review in 2013/14 concluded the following:
 
To further market test the delivery of the required services through competition could 
result in the re-fragmentation of the strands of delivery, so loosing the benefits of the 
integration process. Previous market testing of VCSE infrastructure services via “The 
Chest”, Salford’s procurement portal, has shown that there is likely to be little or no 
appetite for these contracts in the market with no other providers submitting an 
application to deliver the required service when it was put out to tender. This also 
takes into account consideration of the relatively low value of the services once re-
fragmented and the complexity of integrating across the whole sector in the City, 
whilst taking on TUPE obligations. 

A large amount of shared experiences and processes between The Council the 
Clinical Commissioning Group and SCVS have been built up in the process of 
contract alignment to date and the shared “intellectual capital” built up would have to 
be rebuilt with a new provider or providers, risking current and future delivery on key 
agendas and the added financial value of the efficiency of SCVS delivery and the 
extra pots of funding that SCVS secures and taps into around key agendas.

Loss of these contracts would destabilise SCVS and VCSE’s in Salford at a very 
difficult time of budget cuts, with the council making a further £15.8m in savings next 
year alone. 

On 8 March 2017, Procurement Board approved an exception to CSO’s and awarded

Page 19



4

a three year contract to SCVS 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 with an option to 
extend for a further 12 months 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 and then a further 12 
months 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

SCVS continue to provide excellent value for money. Overachieving in all KPI’s and 
outcomes set in the service specification and leading and delivering in the area of 
social value.

Funding in relation to this contract with an annual value of £265,568 is complex and 
investment is received from SCC Housing and Neighbourhoods, Integrated 
Children’s Funding, Non Integrated Children’s Funding and Integrated Adult funding 
and approval for a further 2 years is as below:

Funding Source Investment
£

Service Responsibility for 
approving further 2 
years funding

Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

85,000 Strategic 
Development of 
the VCSE sector

Lead Member for 
Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

28,314 Volunteer 
Brokerage

Lead Member for 
Housing and 
Neighbourhoods 

Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

58,248 Training and 
support to 
VCSE’s

Lead member for 
Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

Integrated Children’s 
Funding

Non Integrated 
Children’s Funding

£22,489

£31,706

Support to 
VCSE’s to ensure 
compliance with 
Safeguarding 
Standards and to 
support the 
VOCAL Children 
and Young 
Peoples Group

The Chief 
Accountable Officer, 
NHS Salford Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group

SCC - Strategic 
Director People

Integrated Adult 
Funding

£39,811 Adult Social Care The Chief 
Accountable Officer, 
NHS Salford Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group

TOTAL 
INVESTMENT

£265,568

However, as the contract for these services sits with Salford City Council SCC 
Procurement Board are responsible for making the decisions to extend this contract.  

Page 20



5

The contract for all services (as described above) are due to expire on 31 March 
2020 with provision within the contract to extend for a 12 months and then a further 
12 months.

Therefore, Procurement Board is recommended to approve a 12 month extension to 
the current contract for Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector, Volunteering 
Brokerage and Training and Support to VCSE’s 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Report of the Strategic Director for Environment and Community Safety - Voluntary 
Sector Grant Review on 8th January 2013

Report of the Strategic Director for Environment and Community Safety and the 
Strategic Director for Children’s Services - Award of contract for Third Sector 
Infrastructure on 11 June 2013

Report of the Strategic Director for Environment and Community Safety and the 
Strategic Director for Children’s Services – Salford Community and Voluntary 
Services (SCVS) Future Commissioning Arrangements January 2014

KEY DECISION:  YES

1.  Background

1.1    A robust review was undertaken in 2013/14 regarding the commissioning 
arrangements with SCVS. The focus of the review was to maximise the 
effectiveness of Council funding in providing a range of services to VCSE’s in 
Salford and also to demonstrate that our commissioning arrangements with 
SCVS represented value for money, that SCVS was the most appropriate 
organisation to deliver the required services and that funding was allocated in 
accordance with our rules and regulations for procurement.

1.2     The review concluded the following:

 To further market test the delivery of the required services through   
competition could result in the re-fragmentation of the strands of delivery, 
so losing the benefits of the integration process.

 A large amount of shared experiences and processes between The 
Council and SCVS have been built up in the process of contract alignment 
to date and the shared “intellectual capital” built up would have to be 
rebuilt with a new provider or providers, risking current and future delivery 
on key agendas and the added financial value of the efficiency of SCVS 
delivery and the extra pots of funding that SCVS secures and taps into 
around key agendas.

Page 21



6

 Loss of these contracts would destabilise SCVS and VCSE’s in Salford at
A very difficult time of budget cuts, with the council making a further
£15.8m in savings next year alone (2014/15).  This is another reason 
mitigating against change of the established provider.

 Previous market testing of VCSE infrastructure services has shown that 
there is likely to be little or no appetite for these contracts in the market, 
considering the relatively low value of the services once re-fragmented 
and the complexity of integrating across the whole sector in the City, whilst 
taking on TUPE obligations.

 On the balance of the evidence of market analysis SCVS are the only 
provider in the market that is in a position to deliver the level of outcomes 
and benefits across the range of themes that is demanded by the current 
contracts.

 The Council and CCG have subsequently aligned resources and 
integrated the SCVS contract with joint contract management 
arrangements and a single specification and monitoring template.  
Financial and monitoring outcomes are now integrated to ensure the 
SCVS work is focused on City priorities and delivers best return on 
investment.

 The Council and CCG review budget contributions and the level of 
investment into the SCVS contract on an annual basis, alongside 
monitoring of performance and delivery of outcomes. As part of this 
process, commissioners regularly consider scope for potential efficiencies 
and/or stretch in contract targets and outcomes. Wherever possible, this 
means we continue to challenge the provider to deliver best value and to 
focus delivery and outcomes around current/emerging City and GM 
priorities. We also continue to push for evidence of the ‘added’ and ‘social’ 
value that SCVS facilitates through their work.

 Continued and sustained funding of the SCVS contract is not just about   
maintaining organisational sustainability.  A fundamental aspect of the 
contract is about supporting local VCSE organisations to ensure a robust 
sector. The Council’s investment therefore enables SCVS and the VCSE 
sector to lever in more money (match) to Salford –) Salford State of the 
Voluntary Sector 2017 report illustrated that in 2014/15 the total income for 
the sector in Salford was £165m).

 Any further reductions in funding on any element of the contract would 
render the service unable to deliver on City priorities and outcomes and 
would require the cutting of services to the VCSE sector and staff 
redundancies.  Furthermore, the impact of any further reductions would be 
felt much wider and impact on the VCSE sector and local economy as a 
whole. The Council agreed to maintain the current budget to ensure that 
SCVS is able to continue to deliver services. 

Page 22



7

1.3     Following the above findings from 2013/14, which were re examined in 2017 
and remained mainly unchanged, Procurement Board at its meeting on 8 
March 2017, approved that a further 3 year contract be awarded to SCVS (1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2020) with and option to extend for 12 months (1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021) and then a further 12 months  (1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2022) subject to funding available and performance.

2. Current Service Delivery 

2.1 The one merged contract which is due to end on 31 March 2020 delivers a 
variety of VCSE capacity building and engagement functions across 
partnership themes as below:

Service/funder Contract Purpose
Strategic 
Development
Funded by 
SCC Housing and 
Neighbourhoods

 £85,000 p.a

To facilitate the Strategic Development of the Third Sector in 
Salford to ensure that it is contributing to a key range of 
themes and partnerships enabling SCVS to promote the 
collective interests of Salford VCSE organisations.  This 
includes co-ordinating the VCSE Leadership Group, informing 
and educating the sector on local, regional and national 
policies and funding opportunities, giving a voice to the VCSE 
Sector across a number of local themes and partnerships, 
facilitating collaboration and providing key back office support 
on issues such as payroll and Disclosure and Barring Service.

Adults Social Care - 
£39,811 p.a

Funded by Adult 
Integrated Budget

To support VCSE’s to have a voice and influence in delivering 
this agenda, providing development and support to enable 
organisations to take an active part in the of health and  well 
being services and participate in the development, 
implementation and delivery of provision, thus helping the 
Council to fulfil it’s Statutory Duties in relation to Adult Social 
care. 

Vocal
Children’s Services 
(£ 31,706)

Funded by Children 
– Non Integrated 
Budget

To provide a forum for bringing together VCSE groups 
working with children, young people and families in Salford, 
for organisational and service user consultation, 
representation, support and capacity building and 
development of good practice, ensuring the VCSE sector 
representation at all key boards and strategic forums and 
groups. 

The Volunteer 
Centre
Funded by SCC 
Housing and 
Neighbourhoods
 (£28,314)

To increase the number and quality of volunteering 
opportunities and improve the skills and experience for 
volunteers. This is facilitated by maintaining a register of 
volunteering opportunities and providing a local agency to link 
volunteers to volunteering opportunities and providing support 
to organisations to improve their volunteer practice and policy.

Page 23



8

Third Sector 
Training and 
Development 

Funded by Housing 
and 
Neighbourhoods 
£58,248 and 
£22,489 by 
Childrens 
Integrated Budget 

To inform and enable VCSE Infrastructure Training and 
Development of organisations and their Trustees with focus 
on supporting new and existing VCSE organisations to be 
‘commissioning ready’ through training, development, advice, 
support on funding, good practice and policy. This includes a 
particular emphasis on training to meet statutory obligations in 
the Safeguarding of children and vulnerable adults. 

3    Added Value

3.1       SCVS also play an important role in relation to Social Value and work in close 
partnership with the Council to make Salford a Social Value City. This means 
embedding a social value approach into every organisation in Salford no 
matter what its size in the sector. 

3.2        SCVS are also members of the Social Value Alliance, The Social Value Core 
Group and represent the sector at the Great Manchester Social Value 
Network. 

3.3 SCVS continue to design, manage and administer the NHS Salford CCG 
supported Third Sector Fund, and have secured a further 5 year settlement of  
£5m. Delivery of this programme is driven by the strategic and development 
work that SCVS are commissioned to deliver by Salford City Council.

4 The rationale for extending the current contract with SCVS

4.1      The VCSE is clearly an important sector for the local economy, Council and 
City Partnership and the State of the Sector 2017  report also shows that the 
VCSE in Salford is diverse, disproportionately fragmented into smaller 
potentially more vulnerable and hard to reach organisations; with the Sector as 
a whole increasingly financially unstable. 

 An estimated 1,513 organisations (1,376 in 2013) provide 2.4 million 
interventions with Salford residents each year

 The total income of the sector in the City was an estimated £165 million 
in 2011/12 (£145 million in 2013)

 An estimated 37,300 volunteers contribute an estimated 137,000 hours 
of their own time each week valued at £122.7 million worth of Gross 
Value Added to the economy (£121.7 million in 2010)

 There are an estimated total of 5,300 total employees in the sector 
whose contribution is valued at £111.2 million p.a

Page 24



9

 69 per cent of organisations are micro organisations with an annual 
income of under £10,000 

 43 per cent of organisations had reserve levels of less than one month's 
expenditure, this has increased from 19 per cent in 2013

 The Report also highlights the powerful contribution of collaboration both 
within the sector and with public sector partners to the continued success 
of organisations and communities in the City.

 

5  Future service delivery 

5.1       Service delivery from 1 April 2020 will include the following: 

 A united voice for VCSE’s in Salford facilitating contributions from, and 
partnership with, the Sector involving the Council and partnership 
boards across the City and supporting and up skilling of the sector 
organisations in the area of operational and policy best practice for the 
Sector

 Increased knowledge in the sector of regional and national issues and 
policies through briefings across the range of Partnership  themes by 
providing briefings (e.g. Strategic Voice briefing) on the key    agendas 
including developments in the wider City Partnership and 
Community Health and Social Care and Children’s Services agendas

 A channel for VCSE organisations to articulate their views and 
influence at a strategic level through SCVS involvement across 
Council and Partnership Boards and forums including the City 
Partnership  and VCSE Leadership Group, as well as at GM level.  
SCVS has engaged in much of the GM level work and is seeking to 
influence the GM devolution agenda on behalf of the VCSE sector as 
well as a strong voice for Salford.

 VCSE involvement in Health and Well Being agendas through co-
ordination and engagement in a range of health partnership boards. 

 VCSE involvement in the Children’s Service agenda through the Vocal 
provider’s network and involvement with the Children’s Trust Board and 
Salford Safeguarding Children’s Board, facilitating the Vocal forum.

 Leadership and development on key Council and partnership themes 
including work with the VCSE Leadership Group in the delivery of the 
actions in the VCSE Investment Strategy. 

 Aligning with partners and helping the VCSE sector to deliver on 
statutory obligations such as Safeguarding and the involvement of the 
voice of the child in policy and practice.

Page 25



10

 Co-operation and collaboration between leaders in the Sector in Salford 
including engagement of representatives from different organisations on  
Council and Partnership Thematic bodies.

 Facilitation to increase  the number and quality of volunteering 
opportunities through providing the Volunteer Centre and related 
training on volunteering practice

 Training and development of Salford’s VCSE organisations to help 
them to operate more efficiently in key operational areas and also to be 
able to compete and be ‘commissioning ready’ and able to meet the 
Salford Safeguarding Standards.

 Funding opportunities through information, briefing, training and advice.

 Key operational support services to VCSE organisations e.g. financial  
management, providing holding accounts, independent examinations, 
Disclosure and Barring Service checks, Organisational    
Personalisation Health Checks payroll services, TUPE  advice, etc

 5.2.      The service specification from 1 April 2020 will focus on SCVS delivering four 
key outcomes as below:

   
           

Outcome 1 The VCSE sector is engaged and involved in locality, city 
partnership and GM work, understands and actively 
contributes to and influence key priorities and Salford’s 
Great 8 priorities

Outcome 2 The VCSE sector is supported and enabled to operate 
robustly within the Salford social, economic and political 
environment”.

Outcome 3 People in Salford are able to access a diverse range of 
volunteering opportunities

Outcome 4 Added value and details of other activity not directly 
commissioned by this contract and the resulting impact

  
6 SCVS  Relationship with GMCVO 

6.1.  The relationship between SCVS and GMCVO is set in the context of the 
relationships between the localities and the city region. SCVS have a close 
working relationship, but complementary skills, knowledge and capabilities. 

6.2.     GMCVO provides voice, advocacy and brokerage for VCSE organisations with 
regard to Greater Manchester level institutions and partnerships, and delivers 
information, networking and signposting with regard to Greater Manchester 
level. It provides some specialist services only viable on a Greater Manchester 
footprint, in particular accredited training, lead and accountable body for large 

Page 26



11

scale partnership projects, host for pan-GM networks and GM research. 
GMCVO does not provide development support for VCSEs or 1-2-1 
information, advice and guidance. GMCVO do not operate a Volunteer Centre 
and provide no frontline volunteering services. Neither do GMCVO provide 
voice and influence work at the local level in Salford. SCVS works 
collaboratively with GMCVO and other GM VCSE infrastructure organisations 
to provide voice and influence for Salford VCSEs at the GM level.

7 Conclusions

7.1    A robust review process has been undertaken in 2013/14 and having re-
examined the findings of that review the conclusions remain unchanged in 
2020.

7.2     On the balance of the evidence of market analysis SCVS are the only provider     
in the market that is in a position to deliver the level of outcomes and benefits 
across the range of themes that is demanded by the current contracts. 

7.3      The current contract delivery provides significant added and social value for  
the level of Council investment and value for money, whilst providing a high 
level of specialist and experienced service for end users.

7.4 SCVS have overachieved in the delivery of all outcome’s and KPI’s as set in 
the services specification and maintaining the  current contract funding levels 
are will help to ensure organisational and sector viability, which is critical at a 
time that the Council continues to face financial challenges and make 
savings. The VCSE sector are essential to supporting local residents when 
some Council services may be reducing, and plays an important part in our 
local economy.

7.6     It is therefore recommended that Procurement Board approve the first year 
contract extension with SCVS for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021:

       

___________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: A Strategy to end Family Poverty; Council Policies on 
Health and Well-being Community Engagement and Social Inclusion.
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

___________________________________________________________________

Page 27



12

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning goods, services or works the Council must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders 
(CSO’s) failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. In 
that regard, the SCVS services described in the report were procured in 2017 for a 3 
year period with the option to extend for up to 2 further years.    

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended (or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of 
the contract), where the original agreement makes provision for the extension. CSO’s 
also set out circumstances where contract extensions may be made.
 
When the contract was originally awarded, it was made clear that the initial term 
would be subject to a potential extension of two years, hence any risk that any 
extension granted could be subject to realistic challenge by an aggrieved provider, on 
the basis that it ought to have been put out again to tender and advertised in 
accordance with PCR and CSO’s, is extremely low, and the option to extend within 
the agreement is now being properly exercised.

Also in accordance with CSO’s, where provision is made within an existing contract 
for an extension to the term, and the value is over £150,000 approval should be 
made by Procurement Board.

Once approved the extension will commit the Council to the one year period outlined 
in the report, with reference to a further report to be submitted to extend beyond that 
for 12 months if appropriate. 

__________________________ _________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied By: - Stephen Thynne, Strategic Finance 
Manager, Tel: 0161 778 0244

This report covers contracting intentions in relation to the contract for Strategic 
Development of the VCSE sector held by Salford Community and Voluntary Services 
(SCVS). The annual value of the contract is £265,568 and approval is sought for a 1 
year extension from 1st April 2020. Funding for the contract is from a range of 
sources – Adults Integrated Fund £39,811, Children’s Integrated Fund £22,489, 
People Children’s revenue budget £31,706 and  Place revenue budget £171,562. 
The Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods is asked to approve the budget 
provision in relation to the Place revenue budget to allow the 1 year extension in 
2020/21 and budget provision only for 2021/22.   

___________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christopher Conway, Tel 0161 686 
6248, Date Provided. 06.02.2020

Page 28



13

Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation to take up the option to 
extend the current contract for an additional 12 months for period 1st April 2020 to 
31st March 2021 (as requested in the PB report), however it is noted that there is a 
further option to extend for an additional 12 months for period 1st April 2021 to 31st 
March 2022 that could be requested separately at a later date.

Procurement would recommend to Adult Social Care that during this initial extension 
period an options appraisal should be undertaken with regards to outlining future 
options for the retendering of these services should the additional option to extend 
not be undertaken.

___________________________________________________________________

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by : N/A 
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
Community Health & Social care, Environment and Community Safety and Children’s 
Services
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICERS: Sandra Derbyshire- Principal Officer Neighbourhoods and 
Communities/ VCSE Commissioning Manager

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): The services provided through the 
contracts discussed cover the whole of the City of Salford.
___________________________________________________________________

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 –Open to the public 
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director Peoples Directorate

TO

Procurement Board

0N

11 March 2020
___________________________________________________________________

TITLE:  Approval for an Extension of Contract for Information and Advice Services
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That the Procurement Board as agreed on 9 March 2016 with the award of 
a three year contract (1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019), with the option to 
extend for a further 12 months (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020) and a 
further 12 months (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021) subject to funding and 
performance:

(a)    Approves the second extension of contract for Information and Advice 
Services with an annual value of £565,726. The contract will be delivered 
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 as detailed in the table below.

(b)       Notes that the Strategic Director will determine the future of this service, in 
line with the overall provision of city wide financial, resilience support to 
ensure preparation is in hand for any further procurement of the service.

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Council and CCG have a long standing commitment to the provision of services 
that support financial resilience in the city and the contract for the provision of 
Information and Advice currently provided by Citizens Advice Bureau is one of the 
components of a citywide service.

In March 2016, Salford City Council Procurement Board approved a 3 year contract 
for the provision of a High Street and Health and Social Care Service -   April 2016 to 
March 2019, with an option to extend for a further 12 months (1 April 2019 to 31 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5c



March 2020) and then a further 12 months (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021). The 
provider of this service is Salford CAB.

However, since the award of the original contract in 2016, there have been 3 
variations to the contract to include Mental Health, Disabled Children/Expectant 
Families and Palliative Care Provision. 

Services are in part funded by the non integrated budget and in part by the 
integrated budget, the contract for all services sits with Salford City Council and on 3 
April 2019 Procurement Board approved the first year’s contract extension for the 
period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.  The services provided under this contract are: 

     High Street Service ( Non Integrated Budget) - £193,205 per annum
     Mental Health         ( Non Integrated Budget)  - £55,928 per annum
     Disabled Children and Expectant Families (Non Integrated Budget)- 

£28,000   per   annum
     Health and Social Care (Integrated Budget)- £273,993 per annum 
     Palliative Care – (Integrated Budget) - £14,600 per annum


TOTAL  BUDGET - £565,726 per annum

As Palliative Care and Health and Social Care Services are funded via the Integrated 
budget a report was  submitted to  Service and Finance Group ( 5 March 2019) and 
ICJC (13 March 2019) where approval was given to approve funding for the 
Integrated budget provision for a further two years 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021)- 
£288,593 per annum and also recommended that Procurement Board approve the 
request to extend the contract for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 with a 
further request to extend the contract for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. 

On 20 March 2019, Lead Member for Adults and Health and Wellbeing provided 
approval of the budget allocation in relation to the non Integrated budget for two 
further years 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021(£277,133) per annum and also 
recommended that Procurement Board approve the request to extend the contract 
for Information and Advice Services (non Integrated budget) for the period 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020 with a further request to extend the contract for the period 1 
April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

Salford CAB continue to provide excellent value for money, overachieve in the 
delivery of the majority of the KPI’s and outcomes set in the service specification, 
deliver significant levels of Social Value and their information, advice and 
interventions bring in significant benefit gains for Salford residents. 

The contract for all services sits with SCC and as such SCC Procurement Board is 
responsible for making the decision to extend this contract.  The contract for all 
services provided (as described above) are due to expire on 31 March 2020 with 
provision within the contract to extend for a further 12 months (1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2021).

Page 32



Therefore, Procurement Board are requested to approve extending the contract for 
Information and Advice Services a further 12 months (1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021). 
A further report will be submitted at a later date if applicable in relation to the future 
deliver of Advice and Information Services from 1 April 2021.

Detail required Example

Contract Reference
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Information and Advice Services

Name of Contractor Salford CAB

Type of organisation Registered Charity

Status of Organisation SME

Value of Contract Extension £565,726 Per annum 

Existing Contract Term   1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Extension Period Requested 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Contact Officer (Name & number) Sandra Derbyshire Tel. 016 793 2570

Lead Service Group Adult Social Care

Funding Source S7053, S8040

___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Report to Procurement Board 9 March 2016 – approval of contract for 3 years for 
Information and Advice Services 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019 with and option to 
extend for a further year – 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 and a further year 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021

CAB  Procurement 
Board   9.3.16.docx

___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  Yes 
___________________________________________________________________

Page 33



1.  Details

1.1    The purpose of the report is to request an extension to the contract for 
Information and Advice Services which is currently delivered by Salford 
CAB.

1.2       There is provision within the current contract to extend the agreement for a 
further 12 months from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

2.   Reason for extending the contract

2.1      A robust tendering process had previously taken place which explored all 
the following:

 Managing demand at a time of reducing resources;
 Collaborative working with partners in the pursuit of excellence in the 

delivery of advice services in Salford;
 Working with key partners and other services that deliver advice services, 

establishing strong working relationships to develop referral processes;
 Effective targeting to reach all sections of the community in Salford 

particularly those communities who services have traditionally found hard 
to reach, for example BME communities;

 Processes for people presenting with Debt (from issue to solution);
 Future plans for the use of self help and the use of online tools;
 Social value, particularly providing opportunities for volunteers;
 The ability to maximize access to and secure external funding:
 The ability to deliver services across numerous categories of advice;
 User involvement and person centered planning;
 Employment of a variety of outreach methods and engagement 

approaches appropriate to the needs and requirements of different 
communities and groups and to demonstrate that they are assertively 
outreaching to maximize engagement and service take up.

2.2   In 2016, the Salford Advice Services (Citizen’s Advice and MIND) and 
Salford City Council (SCC) in-house, Welfare Rights and Debt Advice 
service underwent a commissioner led review. The purpose of the review 
was to: 

    Identify the current and future needs of Salford residents 
    Understand the different delivery models in the Local Authority in-house 

service and the external commissioned services.
    Inform options / recommendations for the advice and information pathway 

experienced by local people
    Provide a strategic framework for the provision of advice and information 

in Salford 

 2.3   A key recommendation of the review was the alignment of all CAB 
contracts across the Council and the CCG.  This has now been fully 

Page 34



implemented and Citizens Advice contracts under the CCG have now 
been varied into the main contract for Information and Advice held by the 
Council. This includes the following contracts: 

     Disabled Children and Expectant Families
     Mental Health – Sub contracted to Mind in Salford. 
     Palliative Care ( pooled budget)

       As there is now one contract in relation to Information and Advice 
Services, single commissioner quarterly monitoring has also now been 
implemented and is led by the Council. This is proving to be more 
effective than the previous individual service monitoring arrangements. 

2.4    Salford CAB currently delivers all of the following and has continued to         
perform satisfactorily and deliver all KPI’s and outcomes as per the 
service specification;

 A generic welfare rights and debt advice service accessible to all 
residents in the city 

 A service provider which is accredited, experienced and with a sufficiently 
strong brand to provide credible initial and specialist advice

 Service provision set in the context of other advice needs such as 
employment, immigration, legal, relationships and family

 A service provider capable of maximising levered resources such as 
volunteer and external funding

    

2.5  The annual contract price for Information and Advice Services for High 
Street, Mental Health Disabled Children and Expectant Families, Health 
and Social Care and Palliative Care is £565,726 with is funded in part 
from the Integrated Budget (£288,593) and in part from the non Integrated 
budget (£277,133).  

 2.6 For the monitoring period for 2018/2019, Salford CAB dealt with over 
20,000 clients and approximately 61,000 issues with many clients 
receiving life changing advice in the areas of:

     Universal Credit
     Benefit Sanctions
     Tax Credits
     Housing
     Environment
     Transport
     Discrimination
     Employment Law
     Immigration, Asylum and Nationality

Page 35



      2.7 Salford CAB continues to provide good value for money, overachieve in all       
key performance indicators.  See inserts below for a full analysis of service       
provision for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019.

         
CAB Q3 monitoing 

report Q3 2019 - 2020.pdf
CAB MH Q3 

monitoring 2019-2020.pptx

3 Social Value  

      3.1  Salford CAB are currently one of the largest single volunteering organisations 
in Salford with a minimum of 80 volunteers working across the bureau at any 
one time, The national investment involved in training volunteer advisors with 
CAB is estimated to be worth £1600 per volunteer and the extensive 
programme also plays a significant part in meeting the city’s broader 
Worklessness and Volunteering Strategy.

      3.2  CAB are a National Living Wage employer and also ensures the same with 
any   businesses and organisations that they subcontract with.

      3.3  CAB’s Volunteer Programme also provides a therapeutic work environment 
for a significant number of people with long term mental health, health of     
dependency problems with CAB acting as an intermediary into the regular 
workplace.

-
__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 Salford Compact
 Family Poverty Strategy
 Financial Inclusion Strategy
 Health Inequalities Strategy
 Delivering services fit for people
 Worklessness Strategy
 Volunteering Strategy
 VCSE Strategy

___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

Equality Impact Assessments have been completed in September 2014 and 
reviewed on a regular basis.
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low risk.  The extension will ensure that the service 
arrangements are maintained between Salford CAB and Salford City Council.
Quarterly monitoring and evaluation of service provision will continue.

Page 36



___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   People Adults Revenue Budget and Adults section of the 
Integrated Fund -  – Cost Centre S7053 & S8040 & S8010
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) as set out 
in the Constitution, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal 
challenge.

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended (or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of 
the contract), and CSO’s also allow for contract extensions to be made, where the 
parties agree and where the original contract makes provision for such an extension 
of the original term. In view of the value of the extension exceeding £150,000, the 
approval should be made by Procurement Board. 

When the contract was originally awarded to CAB by way of a fully compliant OJEU 
process, it was clear in the documentation that the original term would be subject to 
potential extensions of up to two years, hence any risk that the proposed extension 
would be subject to realistic challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it 
ought to have been put out to tender and advertised in accordance with PCR and 
CSO’s, is low, and the option to extend within the contract is now being properly 
exercised.

___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Stephen Thynne – Strategic Finance 
Manager, Tel: 0161 778 0244 

This report requests a 1 year extension from 1st April 2020 of the Information and 
Advice Services contract held by Salford CAB.  The annual value of the contract is 
£565,726 and funding is in part from the adults section of the Integrated Fund 
(£288,593) and part from the Peoples Adults Revenue Budget (£277,133).  Funding 
has been earmarked to allow the extension of the contract.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Chris Conway – Category Manager

Procurement are happy to approve the proposed additional 12 month extension as 
the current contract has the provision to extend for period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 
2021, It is noted that a review was undertaken in 2016 and the CAB contracts are 
now aligned with the CCG, It is confirmed that Procurement will be reengaged in 

Page 37



April 2020 to discuss options for retendering all joint funded contracts with Adult 
Social Care moving forward.
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is 
a joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading 
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER:  Sandra Derbyshire                                                                    
TEL. NO. 0161 793 2570
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All Wards

Page 38



1

Part 2* /Closed* to the public 
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

                    The Strategic Director for Community Health and Social Care   
TO

Executive Lead Member for Adults & Older People (for briefing)
On

14 January 2015
And
TO

Procurement Board (Decision)

ON
9th February 2016

9th March 2016 

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE:  Commissioning Information and Advice Services for Salford, Part of the 
V.C.S.E. Review  
__________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that:

1.  The Executive Lead for Adults & Older People notes and comments on the  
           following:

2 The Chair of the Procurement Board, in exercise of the powers contained within 
the City Council Constitution, approves the following on behalf of the 
Procurement Board

(a) Approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a contract 
to  Salford CAB for Advice and Information Services outlined in the body of 
the report in accordance with Paragraph 3.1 as follows :-

 Where the council can demonstrate that an integrated or strategic approach 
to procurement is being implemented and there is a requirement to align 
services or contracts to co-terminus end dates.  

 There is value for money reasons justifying an exception.

Page 39



2

(b) Approve a three year contract  to deliver on the combined advice & 
information  specification  commencing on the 1 April 2016 to 31 March 
2019, with an option to extend for a further  24 months (1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2021). This will be subject to the results of a planned wider review,  
funding available and satisfactory performance. The detail within the 
contract and service specification will ensure there is adequate flexibility  for 
the council to make any changes required to this service in line with the 
recommendations from the wider review of advice and information, ensuring 
COMPACT compliance.

(c) Current Contract values in scope: Health and Wellbeing service £273,993 of 
which Community Health and Social care Directorate contribute£116,941) 
High Street service £243,205 

(d) The expected efficiency for the redesigned service is £50,000 

(e) Notes that Salford CCG wishes to invest in Salford CAB for the delivery of a 
specialist Mental Health Service (currently delivered by Mind) and will 
commence discussions with CAB in the near future.

Details

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Information and Advice Services 

Name of Successful Contractor 1. Salford CAB 
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement)

1.

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
2. 

1. Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
Contract Value 1. £517,198 ( Current value)

2. £467198 p.a. x3 years(Proposed 
Contract) 

Contract Duration Three years
£1,401,594 Total Contract Value 

Contract Start Date 1st April 2016
Contract End Date 31st March 2019

Optional Extension Period 1 31st March 2019 to April 2021 
Optional Extension Period 2

Who will approve each Extension 
Period?

Procurement Board

Contact Officer (Name & number) Sandra Derbyshire Nigel Johnson  0161 793 

Page 40



3

2570/2191
Lead Service Group Community, Health & Social Care

 
Reason for CSO Exception

(select all that apply)
The need for the goods, services or works is 
so urgent that the time needed to comply 
with the rules would be prejudicial to the 
Council’s interests
Specialist services/supplies which are 
available only from one supplier. For 
example, specialist niche consultants or 
suppliers where there is a sole supplier 
of patented or proprietary articles, 
materials or services exclusively 
provided by a statutory undertaker or 
other bodies
For reasons of compatibility with existing 
services/products – for example, 
equipment that needs parts from its own 
manufacturer
Where any of the standing orders are 
inconsistent with any legislative 
requirements, in which instance the 
provisions of the appropriate legislation 
shall prevail
Where the Council can demonstrate that 
an integrated or strategic approach to 
procurement is being implemented and 
there is a requirement to align services 
or contracts to co-terminus end dates
There are value for money reasons 
justifying a CSO Exception
School Governors: in relation to the 
Local Management of Schools (LMS), 
where schools have adopted their own 
standing orders
The shared legal service, in respect of 
the appointment of counsel
Strategic Director of CHSC: contracts 
for the provision of personal care 
services or facilities pursuant to the 
National Health Service and Community 
Care Act 1990

3.  Notes that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree  to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

Page 41



4

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

1.1 Salford CAB is a provider that falls within the council’s review of the financial 
relationship with the voluntary sector, community groups and social enterprises 
(V.C.S.Es). As part of this review, commissioners were asked to review all current 
contracts with V.C.S Es with a view to delivering savings from within existing 
contracts. 

1.2 The outcome of this review is that savings of £20k were achieved in 2015/2016 
from the High Street Advice and Information Service which Salford CAB is 
commissioned to deliver. Negotiations with CAB also identified that there was scope to 
deliver further efficiencies in 2016/17, by re- specifying the two main existing contracts 
the council has with Salford CAB.

1.3 The current contracts with Salford CAB that are the subject of this report total 
£517,198 and are due to expire March 2016. However, in accordance with the 
V.C.S.E review, negotiations have been entered into with the provider (Salford CAB) 
to seek further savings of £50,000 from these contracts for 2016/17 and thereafter.

1.4 As a result of this work, a new single specification incorporating the High Street 
Service and the Health and Wellbeing (Care Act) Service has been developed, 
securing the provision of a recognised provider able to operate a High Street Service 
to support the preventative community resilience objectives required by council policy 
and the Care Act. A key objective will be for Salford CAB to use its Lottery funded 
Salford Advice and Information Network (SAIN) as the basis of developing a role as 
the core information and advice provider to vulnerable Salford citizens wishing to 
approach a “high street” service.     
 
1.5 NHS Salford CCG have been involved in the re specification of this service and it 
is their intention to enagage with Salford CAB in the near future to discuss the delivery 
of a specialist Mental Health service which will compliment the redesigned advice & 
information service..
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

A review of the council’s financial relationship with the voluntary sector community 
groups and social enterprises (V.C.S.E) – update report- City Mayors Budget Briefing 
8th June 2015. 

VCSE Mayors budget 
briefing Report 8.6.15.doc

Page 42



5

“Approval for an Extension of Contract for Advice Services” Procurement Board 27 
May 2015 

CAB Report extension 
of contract for 15-16 (2).doc

Salford CAB Services:  http://salfordcab.org.uk/
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  YES 

Yes - if total value of contract (i.e. value over full cycle of contract including any 
potential extension period) is greater than £350,000 

___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:  

1. Background

1.1 During October and November 2014, the City Mayor, Assistant Mayors and 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) received a report detailing work carried 
out by officers and Salford CVS over the past 4 years with the Voluntary and 
Community Sectors.  The report highlighted the overall expenditure of the City 
Council on the sector, the developing commissioning approach from grant 
funding to strategic commissioning, the impact of austerity and budget 
savings on the sector and developing opportunities to support the sector.

1.2 The City Councils financial relationship with VCSE’s in 2014/2015 was approx 
£13.5m and included approx £1.7m of investment from the CCG.

1.3 At the meeting on 21 October 2014 CMT identified a further budget efficiency 
target for the sector of £250k which was to be delivered through a more 
coordinated lead commissioning approach.

2. Lead Commissioner Review

2.1 A further report was submitted to CMT on 21 October 2014 which was 
accompanied by the funding schedule showing Council and CCG investment 
with VCSE’s to be £13.5 million in 2014/15 and this schedule informed the 
decision to identify a further  £250k of efficiency savings through the 
implementation of a Lead Commissioner approach which commenced on 1 
February 2015.

2.2 At an early stage in the process, a number of contracts were excluded from 
the review as not in scope for further savings, leaving £6.6m in scope. It is 

Page 43



6

important to note that approximately £720k of this is CCG funding, leaving 
£5.8m of council investment.

 In scope for Lead Commissioner review analysed between directorates

Directorate Value 
£

CCG (part investment) 719.345
Public Health 1,716.114
CH&SC 2,171.569
Children 1,332.015
Environment 516.662
Corporate Business 95,841
Total In Scope for savings 6,551,546(excl CCG

Funding =£5,832,201)

2.3 A Lead Commissioner was allocated to each of the contracts classed as in 
scope at this stage.  The identification of Lead Commissioner was based on 
the greatest source of funding from each Directorate.

2.4 This paper and recommendation forms part of the Community Health and 
Social Care Directorate’s proposals from the above review.

3.  Information and Advice Service 

3.1 The Lead Commissioner review identified that the Salford CAB service was 
delivered under two primary contracts. One Service forms part of the social 
care offer in line with the Personalisation Commissioning Strategy. It now 
forms part of the services offered under the Care Act 2014.This “Health and 
Wellbeing Service” is funded jointly by Salford City Council and Salford CCG 
through the Alliance Agreement.  The total value of this contract is £273,993 
of which £116,941 is allocated by CH & SC and £157,052 is invested by the 
CCG.

3.2 The other main contract is for the “High Street” service to citizens of Salford 
£243,205 in 2015/16. It was this contract that was the subject of a previous 
report outlining efficiencies made for the current financial year. The work on 
this aspect also indicated that a further review may enable further efficiencies 
to be made overall by developing a new specification which builds on the work 
done in the Lead Commissioner Review to establish a common customer 
pathway for Information and Advice services. Making the best use of the 
overall offer to citizens particularly those economically or socially vulnerable.    

3.3 As part of the review process, it was also essential to consider the services 
delivered by the Council Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service. In particular 
to assess the uniqueness of each provider and also to ensure there was no 
duplication in service provision.

Page 44



7

3.4 In order to assess services as described in 3.3, an assessment was 
undertaken involving both the Councils Welfare Rights and Debt Advice 
Service and Salford CAB.  The finding of this assessment are as follows:

Uniqueness of service provided y Salford CAB

 Delivering a High Street Services Across 6 sites
 Delivers a service 6 days per week
 All levels of advice (1 to 6) provided – 10 subject headings
 Significant Social Value volunteering programme
 Private Housing Advice Service
 Secures approx £500k in other sources of funding for services they 

would not be able to deliver without the High Street Service

            Uniqueness of services provided by SCC Welfare Rights and Debt Advice (W 
      

 Statutory duty to deliver charging assessments
 Close working relationship and use same IT systems as Social Workers 

etc

Areas of potential duplication
             

 Both Salford CAB and SCC Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service are 
current working across the 6 levels of service as defined by Community 
Legal Service (see current customer pathway attached)

Advice & Info 
Customer Pathway 1 9 15.docx

 Both providers deliver free, impartial advice and case work re welfare 
rights

 Both providers are developing areas of expertise supporting the 
requirements of The Care Act

 Both providers are currently delivering advice and information in GP’s 
surgeries

 Both providers deal with Debt Relief Orders/authorisations
 Both providers deal with Councillor, MP and City Mayor referrals

 
3.5 The review process also included consideration of other information and 

advice services within the city. Salford CAB had funding from National Lottery 
to establish a city wide network with specialist advice and information 
providers. This is called SAIN (Salford Advice and Information Network 
http://www.salfordadvice.org.uk/) and places the High Street Service in a good 
position to implement a city wide information and advice offer in which the 
customer can be quickly directed to the most appropriate place for information 
and advice through a form of initial “triage” by the first contact organisation. 

4. Proposal for new service

Page 45



8

4.1 In redesigning a new service for Advice and Information in Salford, it was 
essential that we also develop a clear customer pathway, with appropriate 
triage for service users. 

4.2 Again, using the 6 levels of advice described by Community Legal Services, a 
new customer pathway has been developed. (see inserted document). 

Advice  Info 
Customer Pathway FINAL NEW MODEL 23.11.15.docx

4.3 The customer pathway essentially will triage all services users at level 1 to 4 
via Salford CAB, and those requiring services at a more specialist level 5 and 
6, through the Council Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service. 
Most importantly, the redesigned service will provide a much clearer customer 
pathway significantly reducing duplication of current provision.

4.4 CAB will however be required to continue to deliver services at level 5 and 6 
in relation to challenges against the council.  This would include housing, 
homelessness; care needs assessments and housing/environmental 
enforcement issues.

4.5 NHS Salford CGG has been involved in the re-specification and wishes to 
invest in Salford CAB for the delivery of a specialist Mental Health service 
which will fit within the pathway at the core of the new specification. This 
service is currently hosted by Salford MIND following the withdrawal of its 
previous provider. 

       

5.  Social Value  

4.1 Salford CAB is currently one of the largest volunteering organisations in 
Salford with a minimum of 80 volunteers working across the bureau at any one 
time, The national investment involved in training volunteer advisors with CAB 
is estimated to be worth £1600 per volunteer and the extensive programme 
also plays a significant part in meeting the city’s broader Worklessness 
Strategy.

4.2. CAB’s volunteer programme also provides a therapeutic work environment for 
a significant number of people with long term mental health, health or 
dependency problems with CAB acting as an intermediary into the regular 
workplace.

4.3.Salford CAB dealt with over 20,000 clients and 40,000 issues in 2014/2015 
with many clients receiving life changing advice in the areas of:

 Universal Credit
 Benefit Sanctions
 Housing

Page 46



9

 Environment
 Transport
 Immigration & Asylum

6. Salford CAB Performance
 
      5.1 A robust tendering process had previously taken place which explored all the

following:

 Managing demand at a time of reducing resources;
 Collaborative working with partners in the pursuit of excellence in the delivery of 

advice services in Salford;
 Working with key partners and other services that deliver advice services, 

establishing strong working relationships to develop referral processes;
 Effective targeting to reach all sections of the community in Salford particularly 

those communities who services have traditionally found hard to reach, for 
example BME communities;

 Processes for people presenting with Debt (from issue to solution);
 Future plans for the use of self help and the use of online tools;
 Social value, particularly providing opportunities for volunteers;
 The ability to maximize access to and secure external funding:
 The ability to deliver services across numerous categories of advice;
 User involvement and person centered planning;
 Employment of a variety of outreach methods and engagement approaches 

appropriate to the needs and requirements of different communities and groups 
and to demonstrate that they are assertively outreaching to maximize 
engagement and service take up.

   5.2 Salford CAB currently delivers all of the following and has continued to perform     
satisfactorily and deliver all KPIs and outcomes as per the service specification;

 A generic welfare rights and debt advice service accessible to all residents in 
the city. 

 A Care Act related Health and Wellbeing information and advice service 
 A service provider which is accredited, experienced and with a sufficiently 

strong brand to provide credible initial and specialist advice
 Service provision set in the context of other advice needs such as employment, 

immigration, legal, relationships and family
 A service provider capable of maximising levered resources such as volunteer 

and external funding

6. Conclusions

6.1 As part of the review process an assessment has been undertaken on the two 
contracts currently commissioned with Salford CAB and the Council’s In house 
Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service which concluded that there is currently 
some duplication in service provision across the two providers.

Page 47



10

6.2 Merging the two current contacts with Salford CAB will enable efficiencies of 
£50,000 to be achieved in 2016/17.

6.3 Salford CAB currently delivers significant added value for the level of council 
investment and value for money, whilst providing a high level of advice and 
information to Salford residents.

6.4 There are no alternative providers with a broad enough knowledge and 
expertise in the areas of advice and information, which are also a recognised 
High Street accredited provider that is able to deliver the required diverse 
services in the medium term.

6.5 The implementation of the proposed redesigned service will provide a clearer 
customer pathway for advice and information level 1 to level 6 for service users 
and as such will reduce duplication of current provision significantly. The Heath 
and Wellbeing element will be enhanced in particular by CAB taking a more 
prominent position in receiving referrals and ensuring contacts are referred on, 
internally or to the other information and advice providers in the local offer. 
Supporting the Health and Wellbeing Strategy in supporting resilience and 
reducing need for more intensive services.

6.6 There is a planned wider review of the information and advice offer in Salford . 
This is noted in the service specification as a indicator that within the security of 
the three year contract a variation in the contract may be required within its 
time envelope.any changes will be dealt with in accord with the Voluntary 
sector Compact.Salford CAB is  fully engaged in the review process.

6.7 It is therefore concluded/ recommended that:
 The two current contracts for advice and information be merged with a 

further contract awarded to Salford CAB for three years (1 April 2016 to 
31 March 2019) with an option to extend for a further 24 months subject 
to funding available, satisfactory performance and the results of the 
wider review of advice and information in Salford.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Salford Compact
 Family Poverty Strategy
 Financial Inclusion Strategy
 Health Inequalities Strategy
 Delivering services fit for people
 Worklessness Strategy
 Health and Wellbeing Strategy
 Personalisation Commissioning strategy 

http://www.salford.gov.uk/commissioningstrategy.htm

Page 48

http://www.salford.gov.uk/commissioningstrategy.htm


11

___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

Not Applicable.
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low risk. 
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   CHSC 
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: the Shared Legal Service 
Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Ordinarily, when commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (the Regulations). The Regulations require that 
contracting authorities treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and 
act in a transparent manner. In addition, the Council is required to comply with the 
requirements of its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award 
of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. .

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from Procurement 
Board, as detailed in Part 5 of the Council Constitution, there is still a risk of challenge 
from aggrieved providers if the usual procurement process has not been followed. The 
risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value of the contract (and/or proposed 
length of any extension to a contract). In this instance, the usual argument that full 
tender and competition would bring the benefit of  lower prices and better quality thus 
achieving better value for money  is not necessarily so, as evaluating bids is costly 
and more bidders may not necessarily lead to lower prices, and the administration cost 
of running a full tender could be significant. 

Other reasons for the exception request are set out in the report, such as aligning 
contracts to avoid duplication of work, and the fact that CAB has a wealth of 
experience in providing these services in conjunction with the Council, and is the only 
provider capable of providing the level of advice services of such breadth in a high 
street setting.

The Council will be reluctant to use a new provider as any failure in the procurement 
or commissioning process may jeopardise the ability of the Council to provide the 
services and will have potentially significant detrimental effects on service users.  The 
contract award to the CAB on the added basis of its reputation and proven ability to 
meet the requirements of the service, together with the knowledge of the market which 
the Council possesses, and existing links with the community would be argued to be 
more cost effective and efficient under the circumstances.

Page 49



12

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, 
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public 
procurement. The Council has considered the circumstances in this matter and 
concluded that the recommendation to award the contract to CAB is considered to be 
of least risk and of most benefit to the Council.

Once approved the contract will commit the Council to the period detailed in the report, 
and Legal Services will assist in preparing any necessary contractual documentation 
to engage CAB upon receipt of instructions to ensure that the Council's interests are 
protected. 

___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Hesketh, strategic finance manager, 
x2668

The revised, combined contract would generate a net efficiency of £50,000 pa 
compared to existing contracts as set out below.

CAB contract(s) Current Proposed Saving
£000 pa £000 pa £000 pa

Health and well-being service 274 incl in total
High street advice service 243 incl in total
Mental health not provided incl in total
Total contract(s) value 517 533
less CCG contribution [mental health] -66
Total SCC contribution 517 467 50

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Andrew Briffa

The report outlines a proposal to issue a new contract from the 1 April 2016 to 31st 
March 2019, with the potential to offer an extension, to Salford CAB to deliver advice 
and information throughout the City.  There is currently no provision to extend the 
existing contracts so a recommendation is presented to Procurement Board for an 
exception to contractual standing orders.  

If Procurement Board approve the proposal, a saving of approx £50 000 will be 
achieved in addition to the Provider delivering a significant number of volunteering 
opportunities. 

There are procurement risks to approving the exception, as outlined in more detail 
within the legal comments, in terms of challenges from Providers in this market due to 

Page 50



13

not opening up competition through tender process for the contract. However, the risk 
should be considered against the current high standards of service delivery, the niche 
market the current Provider operates and the wider benefits, as outlined in the report, 
which could be achieved.

___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Corporate Business 
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Sandra Derbyshire & Nigel Johnson                            
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All WARDS
___________________________________________________________________

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

1 
 

CITIZEN’S ADVICE CONTRACT 

MONITORING BOOKLET 

Reporting Quarter:   Q3 2019 
Completed by:  CE/EK  

Contact Details:  0161 212 4457 
 

Contents 

Reporting Area Page 

Case Studies 2 

Core Service  6 

Health and Wellbeing 10 

GP Provision 13 

Demographics (All Clients) 16 

Volunteering, Marketing, Funding+ Partnerships 22 

PCAS 25 

EFAS 31 

DFAS 36 

  

 

CORE SERVICE  

Total No of Clients Supported  

 

 

 

 

Actual Target 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD  

5,116 5,596 5,283  15,995  16,000 to 21,200 

      

      

      

      

Page 53



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

2 
 

CASE EXAMPLES DEMONSTRATING IMPACT AGAINST OUTCOMES (Core Contract)  

1  Right To Reside UC challenge 

Background 
Client is a Czech national, single, with dependent child born under 1yr, with pre settled status in UK.  
Client had always worked until taking maternity leave last year. Whilst on maternity leave the 
client was dismissed from work and  applied for Universal Credit (UC) and was granted it until her 
maternity leave period ended in Oct 2019.  Client found a new job part time job of 16 hrs and 
reclaimed Universal credit but was refused. 

  
Presenting Need 
Client wanted to challenge the refusal of UC , as she had previously been awarded and was unable to 
afford  nursery which costs £120 pound per week for 3 days with a wage of £150 a week.  

 
Advice /Action  
We checked the decision and established that client failed the habitual residence test as DWP did not 
class client as a work seeker or someone who has retained worker status.  

 
We advised that client status form start date of new employment in Dec 19 she  was a worker, and  
we explored the possibility of backdating UC for the 7 week period in which client has no income but 
could have potential retains worker status under a difference regulation. 

 
In order to do this we checked client wages slips back to when she came into the UK, maternity pay , 
and new employment start date. Based on this, we advised client that whilst on maternity leave she 
should have retained worker status, but there has been a gap of almost 1 month when she did not 
work of register as a work seeker which posed a problem. 

 
Explored claim background with client and found that she has been wrongly advised by DWP to claim 
UC , rather than contribution based JSA. We advised that this would have provided worker status 
needed during the ‘gap’ period in employment  

 

 

Further work  

 
We assisted client with a detailed Mandatory Reconsideration quoting relevant case law, and arguing 
from wage slips seen, that client would satisfy the 2 year NI contribution conditions for ‘new style’ 
JSA,   that whilst on maternity leave in October 2018 client retained worker status and would have, 
had she been correctly advised by the DWP regarding  Contributions Based JSA, have retained worker 
status whilst claiming JSA  until started my current employment.  

 
We also submitted contract of current employment and current pay arguing this should be viewed as 
genuine and effective work and since the commencement of this work, client status was currently as 
a worker.  
 

Outcome 

Client was awarded monthly UC of £1064, and backdated award of £2128  

 

Page 54



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

3 
 

2. Housing Benefit Overpayment due to wrongly calculated income 

 
Background 
Client, living with husband and child in housing association property and was claiming legacy 
benefits including Housing Benefit (HB).  Client experienced several changes of personal 
circumstances within a short period last year.   

 
Presenting Need 
Client received an invoice from Salford City Council regarding an  overpayment of Housing Benefit 
for £1024.44 for a period of just  over a year.  English was not first language and client could not 
understand the invoice or HB decision letters. Two days after the invoice client received a notice of 
enforcement which increased the amount alleged overpayment to £1389. 

 
 Client had previously contacted Salford City Council informing that her husband had ceased being a 
student and commenced employment, and that she had lost her job.  
  
Advice /Action  

 
We assisted the client to understand the HB decision letters and took a full history or client 
circumstance during the overpayment period.  

 
Client explained that upon reporting the last change of circumstance  over 6 months ago, that  the 
HB system had not updated  about the husband no longer being a student, and  upon reading the 
most recent nil award HB decision letter, this was still the case as the decision had erroneously 
included over £500 student income.  

 
  
Further work 
As we identified that HB have been using the incorrect income for the past year to calculate their 
award that has  lead to an alleged overpayment, we requested a mandatory Reconsideration arguing 
that due to the complexity of the Housing Benefit system, and client circumstances , that the 
client  had no idea she  was being overpaid and could not have reasonably been expected to realise 
there was an overpayment. 
 

Outcomes 

Reconsideration is still in progress  

 
 
3. Backdate of Guarantee Pension Credit  
 
Background 
Client is single, retired, living in 3 bedroom HA property as sole occupant. Client income made up of 
New State Pension of £168.80 PW, disability benefit and a small  occupational pension of £62 pcm.  

 
Client was formerly being charged Bedroom Tax which had in part been covered by Discretionary 
Housing Payments before reaching pension age 

 
Presenting Need 

Page 55



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

4 
 

 
Client still had some rent arrears, he did not know the amount outstanding, and was paying these back 
at £5.00 every 2 week. Client wanted to know if he could now get full help with rent costs via Housing 
Benefit. 

 
Advice /Action  

 
Advised that client being of pension age, would not be subject to the ‘bedroom tax’  
We carried out a full benefit check, in client’s presence and based on the income details client gave 
us,  confirmed client should be getting full HB/CTR and  a top-up of GPCs of £50.19 weekly, because 
of the additional premium for living alone and no one receiving Carers Allowance for looking after 
him.  

 

Further work 
We liaised with Gateway staff whilst client present, who confirmed HB and CTR were being paid in full, 
and rent arrears, of £200 were remaining from the period before he reached pension age. 

 
We assisted with a claim for Guarantee Pension Credit with SDP £50.19 and requested a 3 months 
backdate 

 

Outcomes 

GPC award of £50.19 weekly including a £652 backdated award 

 
4. Failed Asylum Seeker 

Background 

 
Client is a 27 year old single male.  Originally presented as an asylum seeker after arriving in the UK 
from Sudan, client was in receipt of NASS support and housing.   Client had limited English skills with 
Arabic being the first language. Health background is not known.    

 
Presenting Issue 

 Initial presentation was with regard to his ASPEN card no longer having any funds on it.  These funds 
should be topped up weekly as part of the asylum support for destitute asylum seekers.  Client should 
have been receiving £39.00 per week. Client effectively destitute with no recourse to public funds and 
no entitlement to find gainful employment 

Later presentations resulted from the client being “locked out” from his NASS accommodation by the 
provider SERCO. 

Advice /Action  
Several attempts were made by CA volunteers / staff to contact Migrant Helpline to assist with trying 
to access money on the ASPEN card.  Subsequent investigations indicated that there is an average of 
3 hour wait time for calls to be answered despite this line being there for people with little access to 
funds or services due to the restrictions placed on their status as asylum seekers. 

Page 56



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

5 
 

Further calls and emails to various migrant support services / NASS suppliers and Home Office 
Immigration office in Salford Quays failed to shed any further light on the situation.  Most lines were 
either permanently engaged or disconnected after several minutes. Client was visibly distressed by 
the outcome of these interventions. 

Due to destitution of client he was referred to St Paul’s Church who agreed to feed, clothe and house 
the client until the issue was resolved.  The client chose to leave this after 1 day and returned to sleep 
on the floor of the previous NASS property in a common room. 

We contacted SERCO who responded  4 days later stating that Client  had been refused asylum and as 
such support needed to end, and that Client  had been made aware and that all his belongings were 
waiting to be delivered to him once he was able to  provide an address they could be delivered to.  

Further work 

Client was supported with a  Specialist Immigration appointment.  

Outcome 

Whilst the outcome is not yet resolved for the client, we have enabled contact with relevant agencies, 
established urgent immigration status and provided appropriate signposting for a specialist 
appointment.   

 
 
5. Tenancy Succession 

Background 

Client is a 22 year old man who was living in a 2 bed housing association property with his elderly 
mother: she was the sole Assured Tenant until her death in May 2018.  He was given assurances by 
the housing association that he would be able to succeed to the tenancy.  

Client lives with anxiety and depression. He was awaiting tests for Autism due to his social anxiety and 
other issues as he finds change very stressful. He had been in the same job since leaving school, he 
had always lived with his mum until her death. He had lived in this property for nearly 5 years and was 
feeling settled there. Client is carer for his sister who has advanced MS and lives nearby.  He wanted 
to stay in the property. 

 
Presenting Need 

In December 2018 he was given a Notice to Quit by the landlord, and he needed to be out of the 
property by 21 January 2019. They offered to rehouse him in another 1 bed property. H  

Client came to CitIzens Advice for assistance and an appointment was set up to see the housing 
adviser. 

 Advice /Action 

We advised that as his mother was an Assured Tenant, the only people with a statutory right of 
succession would spouses, civil partners and cohabitees. However, his mother's tenancy agreement 
may give a right to pass on the tenancy to other family members. No copy of his mother's tenancy 
agreement was available. After us corresponding with the landlord, they agreed to hold-off possession 

Page 57



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

6 
 

action and agreed to consider a case for discretionary succession. We drafted a written submission for 
him in support of his application and supported him through the process. 

Outcomes 

 In October  2019 the Landlord agreed that client  could stay in the property and he signed a new 
tenancy agreement. 

 
 
  
Types of Intervention Q3 2019 

 

Types of Advice Q3 2019  

 

Issues Supported 

78%

16%

6%

Assisted Information

Generalist Advice

Case Work

36%

11%

1%

22%

0%

1%

5%

1%

2%

8%

3%

2%
1%

4%

1%

2%
1% 1% Benefits & tax credits

Universal Credit

Consumer goods & services

Debt

Discrimination

Education

Employment

Financial services & capability

Health and community care

Housing

Immigration & asylum

Legal

Other

Relationships & family

Tax

Travel & transport

Utilities & communications

Bereavement

Page 58



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

7 
 

Issue Type QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Annual 
Target 

Benefits + Tax 
Credits 5039 6,045 5,655  16,739 

22,000 

Universal 
Credit 2041 1,627 1,657  5,325 

TBC 

Consumer 
Goods + 
Services  175 166 188  529 

600 

Debt 3014 3,604 3,462  10,080 12,000 

Discrimination 39 39 42  120 TBC 

Education 66 87 95  248 170 

Employment  726 867 720  2,313 2,700 

Financial 
Services + 
Capability  144 166 174  484 

500 

Health and 
Wellbeing  338 390 363  1091 

1,500 

Housing 1265 1,372 1,282  3919 2,650 

Immigration, 
Asylum and 
Nationality  414 457 523  1394 

550 

Legal 256 383 319  958 1,000 

Other eg 
charity/food 153 159 169  481 

 

Relationships + 
Family 390 585 389  1364 

1,300 

Tax 148 134 161  443 300 

Travel and 
Transport  255 271 270  796 

400 

Utilities and 
Communication 177 188 211  576 

700 

Bereavement  75 96 80  251 200 

Diagnosis of 
LTC 

 
    

200 

Total  14715 16,636 15,760  47,111  

Narrative as needed:  
 
As last quarter the top 5 issues are Benefits, Debt, Universal Credit , Housing and Employment. 
 
 

 

Average Waiting Times 2019 

 Average Waiting Time  Longest Wait 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3  QTR 4  QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3  QTR 4  

 Case Work 3 -   10 -   

Generalist Advice  2 -   6 -   

Assisted Information Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Same 
day 

Narrative as needed:  

Page 59



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

8 
 

We are unable to provide data due to changes to the booking system, which now doesn’t report ‘next 
available appointments’  or ‘client choice’ 
 
   

 

 

 

 

 

Benefit Gains ALL % 

 

Benefit Gains (£)  

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New Style JSA £4,816 £32,310 £46,939  £84,065 
Universal Credit £759,754 £593,439 £768,801  £2,121,994 
New Style ESA £445,387 £418,248 £438,540  £1,302,175 
Income Support £9,599 £1,871 £3,424  £14,894 
Housing Benefit  £83,474 £124,601 £97,034  £305,109 
Council Tax 
Reduction £55,059 £50,663 £46,041  £151,763 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Job Seekers Allowance

Universal Credit

Employment & Support Allowance

Housing Benefit

Council Tax Reduction

Disability Living Allowance

Personal Independence Payment

Attendance Allowance

Child Benefit

Pension Credit

Carers Allowance

OTHER egBereave,SRP

Q3

Q3

Page 60



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

9 
 

Disability Living 
Allowance  £59,773 £87,328 £52,373  £199,474 
Personal 
Independence 
Payment £1,170,459 £1,453,599 £1,091,671  £3,715,729 
Attendance 
Allowance  £258,517 £167,051 £205,187  £630,755 
Working / Child Tax 
Credits £31,053 £41,983 £14,113  £87,149 
Child Benefit £22,458 £28,137 £48,036  £98,631 
Pension Credit £211,059 £164,315 £114,254  £489,628 
Carers Allowance £75,054 £42,592 £36,300  £153,946 

Localised Welfare  £7,708 £4,999 £6,210  £15,486 

Passported Help £12,398 £6,132 £8,493  £2,7023 

OTHER eg 
Bereave,SRP £128,388 £82,177 £117,200  £327,765 

Total £3,334,955 £3,299,446 £3,094,616  £9,729,017 
Narrative as needed:  
Localised Welfare increased this quarter due to an increase in DHP assistance 

 

Debts Written Off 2019 

 Amount 

Issue QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Target 

 £458,441 £802,208 £317,396    

       

 

Other Gains/ Added Value   

 Amount 

Issue QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Target 

Consumer 
Redress 

 
£860 £2,259 

 
£3,020 

  
£6,139 

 

Employment Pay 
and Entitlements 

 
£19,097 £12,904 

 
£12,280 

  
£44,281 

 

Immigration – 
Asylum support 

 
£0 £0 

 
£550 

  
£550 

 

Other        

Health/Care 
Charges 

 
£1,030 £3,218 

 
£2,916 

  
£7,164 

 

Tax (incl Council) £12,035 £2498 £6,588  £21,121  

Charitable grant 
+Food 

 
£2,749 

 
£5166 

 
£8,094 

  
£16,009 

 

Housing Deposit 
Reimbursement 

 
£6,900 £0 

 
£2,100 

  
£9,000 

 

Relationships £3,960 £1500 £5,400  £10,860  

Legal/Court Fees £2,480 £0 £0  £2,480  

Travel £150 £2820 £1,384  £4,354  

Total £49,261 £30,365 £42,332  £121,958  

 

Page 61



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

10 
 

Training Courses and Workshops 

None this quarter  

 

 

 

 HEALTH AND WELLBEING / CARE ACT  

Types of Intervention Q3 2019 

 
OUTCOMES (HEALTH AND WELLBEING) + No of Clients Supported.  

Outcomes Actual YTD Target  

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4   

1. Increase client 
choice and control in 
health and social care 
provision 25 34 17  76 

 

2. Improve client’s 
general health and 
wellbeing 491 572 334  1397 

 

3. Decrease social 
isolation and improve 
ability to take part in 
daily life 1 02 44 61  207 

 

4. Reduction on 
reliance on statutory 
health and social care 
services  14 6 6  26 

 

5. Improve physical 
health by enabling 
clients to receive social 
care and health 
support, advice and 
information  8 5 12  25 

 

6. Enable clients to live 
in their usual place of 
residence – cumulative 495 270 305  1,070 

 

58%

48%

2%

Assisted Information

Generalist Advice

Case Work

Page 62



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

11 
 

effect of outcomes 
above.  

Total  933 931 735  2,599  

 

 

Types of Advice Q3 2019 

 

Health and Wellbeing Issues Supported  

Issue QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Target 
by Year  

Benefits + Tax Credits 2,264 2,031 2,104  6,399  

Universal Credit 571 412 425  1,408  

Consumer Goods + Services  13 8 7  28  

Debt 18 21 12  51  

Discrimination 5 9 7  22  

Education 6 2 6  14  

Employment  32 33 19  84  

Financial Services + Capability  13 5 37  55  

Health and Wellbeing  156 151 97  404  

Housing 81 74 42  197  

Immigration, Asylum and 
Nationality  8 10 13  31 

 

Legal 22 19 19  60  

Other eg charity/food 27 24 22  73  

Relationships + Family 25 23 11  59  

Tax 25 12 40  77  

71%

14%

1%

1%

3%

1%
1%

1%
1%

3%

Benefits & tax credits

Universal Credit

Employment

Financial Services and capability

Health and community care

Housing

Legal

Other

Tax

Travel & transport

Page 63



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

12 
 

Travel and Transport  83 65 80  228  

Utilities and Communication 8 20 13  41  

Bereavement  17 17 8  42  
LTC’s       
Total 3,374 2,936 2,962  9,272  

 

 

Health and Wellbeing Average Waiting Times 

 Average Waiting Time Longest Wait 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 

Working days 3 1.5 3.75  7 6 8  

         

         

Narrative as needed:  
Data shows average waiting times from the date of contact by external referrers in period 
 
The longest wait was within referral pathway and was for a Home Visit just before Christmas 

 

Benefit Gains (£) HWB 

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New Style JSA  £1,015 £0 £12,435  £13,450 
Universal Credit £379,564 £206,728 £289,985  £876,277 

New Style ESA £252,240 £217,449 £276,317  £746,006 

Income Support £5,210 £1,871 £0  £7,081 

Housing Benefit £32,412 £38,020 £26,336  £96,768 

Council Tax Reduction £32,907 £20,757 £19,436  £73,100 

Disability Living Allowance  £55,215 £46,693 £48,892  £150,800 

Personal Independence 
Payment £817,369 £894,245 £903,114  

£2,614,728 

Attendance Allowance  £222,852 £149,110 £169,545  £541,507 

Working / Child Tax 
Credits £14,123 £0 £3,640  

£17,763 

Child benefit £7,868 £3,942 £10,004  £21,814 

Pension Credit £136,979 £78,561 £52,615  £268,155 

Carers Allowance £42,340 £21,961 £24,064  £88,385 

Localised Welfare  £3,472 £2,659 £570  £6,701 

Passported Help £10,716 £6,132 £7,751  £24,599 

Other eg Bereave, SRP £20,281 £49,956 £37,238  £107,475 

Total £2,034,563 £1,738,084 £1,881,942  £5,654,589 

Narrative as needed:,   
 

 

Page 64



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

13 
 

GP Provision  

Total No of Clients Supported  

Name of GP Surgery  QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD TGT 

       

MacMillan 29 24 21    

Newbury Green 41 42 35    

Sorrel Bank 28 28 25    

  Total 98 94 81    

Narrative as needed:  
 

 

Types of Intervention Q3 2019 

 

 

Types of Advice Q3 2019 

 

53%

46%

1%

Assisted Information

Detailed Advice

 Case Work

63%
15%

2%

1%
1% 5%

8%

1% 2% 2%
1%

Benefits & tax credits

Universal Credit

Debt

Employment

Financial service and capability

Health and community care

Housing

Relationships and family

Tax

Travel & transport

Utilities & communications

Page 65



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

14 
 

 

GP Issues Supported  

Issue Type QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Annual 
Target 

Benefits + Tax 
Credits 188 272 202  

662  

Universal 
Credit 45 24 50  

119  

Consumer 
Goods + 
Services  0 0 1  

1  

Debt 6 5 5  16  

Discrimination 1 0 0  1  

Education 1 2 1  4  

Employment  3 5 2  10  

Financial 
Services + 
Capability  2 5 2  

9  

Health and 
Wellbeing 8 12 16  

36  

Housing 4 13 26  43  

Immigration, 
Asylum and 
Nationality  6 6 0  

12  

Legal 1 6 1  8  

Other eg 
charity/food 4 3 0  

7  

Relationships + 
Family 2 1 2  

5  

Tax 1 2 7  10  

Travel and 
Transport  9 9 6  

24  

Utilities and 
Communication 0 7 2  

9  

Bereavement  0 0 0  0  

LTC’s 0      

Total  281 372 
323 

 976 
 

 

 

Average Waiting Times 2019 

GP Average Waiting Time Longest Wait Target 

QTR 
1 

QTR 2 QTR 
3 

QTR 
4 

QTR 
1 

QTR 
2 

QTR 
3 

QTR 4  

Sorrel, Newbury 
MacMillan 

0 -   5     

          

          

Page 66



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

15 
 

          

Narrative as needed:  
We are unable to provide data due to changes to the booking system, which now doesn’t 
report ‘next available appointments’  or ‘client choice’ 
 

 

 

Benefit Gains (£) GP 

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New style JSA  0 0 £0  £0 

Universal Credit £35,367 £21,169 £28,817  £85,353 

Employment & Support 
Allowance  £28,112 £37,526 £11,165  

£76,803 

Income Support 0 0 £0  £0 

Housing Benefit  0 £7,167 £0  £7,167 

Council Tax Reduction £3,303 £2,346 £0  £5,649 

Disability Living 
Allowance  0 0 £3,481  

£3,481 

Personal Independence 
Payment £121,819 £128,361 £51,228  

£301,408 

Attendance Allowance  £24,273 £9,157 £13,674  £47,104 

Working / Child Tax 
Credits £3,355 £3,164 £0  

£6,519 

Child Benefit 0 £3,229 £0  £3,229 

Pension Credit £7,193 0 £14,952  £22,145 

Carers Allowance £5,260 0 £0  £5,260 

Localised Welfare  0 0 £0  £0 

Passported Help 0 0 £0  £0 

OTHER eg Bereave,SRP £10,021 £8,414 £10,109  £28,544 

Total £238,703 
£220,532 £133,426  

£592,661 
 

Narrative as needed:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

16 
 

Demographics (All Clients)  

Clients Supported by Gender   Q3 2019

 

 

 

Clients Supported by Age Profile Q3 2019 

 

 

53%
44%

3%

Female

Male

Not Recorded

1%

5%

8%

10%

11%

9%

9%

10%

10%

10%

6%

4%

3%
2%

1%
1%

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

Not Recorded

Page 68



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

17 
 

 

Ethnicity Q3 2019 

 

 

1%

2%

1%

7%
1%

1%
1%

1%

2%

2%

48%

3%

1%

5%

24%

Asian or Asian British – Indian

Asian or Asian British – Other

Asian or Asian British – Pakistani

Black or Black British – African

Black or Black British – Other

Mixed – White & Asian

Mixed – White & Black African

Mixed – White & Black Caribbean

Other – Any Other

Other – Arab

White – British

White – English

White – Irish

White – Other

Not recorded/not applicable

Page 69



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

18 
 

Self-Defined As Disabled Q3 2019 

 

 

Religion Q3 2019 

 

14%

33%
38%

14%
Disabled

Long-Term Health
Condition

Not disabled/no
health problems

Unknown/withheld

2% 2%

23%

1%
5%

13%

53%

Christian - Catholic

Christian - Protestant

Christian (any denominations)

Jewish

Muslim

No religion

Not recorded/not applicable

Page 70



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

19 
 

By Ward

 

Additional narrative on demographics if needed:  
 

 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10%

Barton

Boothstown and Ellenbrook

Broughton

Cadishead

Claremont

Eccles

Irlam

Irwell Riverside

Kersal

Langworthy

Little Hulton

Ordsall

Pendlebury

Swinton North

Swinton South

Walkden North

Walkden South

Weaste and Seedley

Winton

Worsley

Adviceline

Not Known/ NFA

QTR 3 2019

QTR 3

Page 71



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

20 
 

ALL Referral IN Q3 2019

   

Narrative as necessary:  
In quarter 3  there were 83 formal external referrals received. This is in addition to the ongoing 
commitments  with  our outreach partners- Macmillan Information Centre, Age UK Salford, GP practices (  
Sorrel Group and Newbury Green)  
‘Primary Care Network ’ include referrals from Salford Together Enhanced Care Teams and ‘Other’ includes  
Salford Assist.  
 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

SRFT Clinical Nurse Specialist

SRFT Discharge Social Work Team

AGE UK Salford

SRFT Other specialist

Social Prescribing

Primary Care Network

MacMillan Info Centre

Other

QTR 3

External
Referrals

Page 72



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

21 
 

Referrals Out Q3 2019

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

CHARITIES Food Emergency

CHARITIES: Domestic services/ Utilities

LOCALISED WELFARE- Domestic Services/Utilities

CHARITIES Clothing Children

CHARITIES Food (Non Emergency)

LOCALISED WELFARE- Domestic Goods/Appliances

CHARITIES: Domestic goods/appliances

LOCALISED WELFARE -Discretionary Housing Payment

LOCALISED WELFARE- Food crisis

CONSUMER- Energy Providers

CHARITIES- Other

LOCALISED WELFARE- Housing Benefit

CHARITIES Clothing Adult

HMRC - Child Benefit/CTC

LOCALISED WELFARE- Council Tax…

ADVOCACY- Community

DWP - Disability Claim

SALFORD: DWP - Sickness (Contribution)

SPEC ADVICE- Employment

Table 1

Referrals Out Q3

Page 73



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

22 
 

 

 

Narrative as necessary:  
168 External Referrals (table 1 ) were made in quarter 3  in  20  different categories. 
 
155 External Signposts (table 2) were made in quarter 3  in over 47 different categories.  
Only a value of 2 or more signposts by type are displayed.  
 

 

VOLUNTEERING 

Total No Volunteers  

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Annual 
Target 

No Volunteer 
Opportunities Offered  

34 
 

39 48  73 70 

Total Number of 
Volunteers 

67 
 

65 71    

New Volunteers Inducted 10 5 9  15  

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

ADULT CARE- Occupational Therapy

DWP - Disability Claim

HEALTH COMMUNITY - Primary Care (GP)

DWP - In Work (UC)

SPEC ADVICE - Consumer

ADULT CARE -Care Act Assessment / Review

WELLBEING-Emotional support/therapies-…

SPEC ADVICE - Immigration

LOCALISED WELFARE- Housing Benefit

CHARITIES Carer (Adult)

DWP - Carers ( UC)

HEALTH COMMUNITY- Physio and allied HP

DWP - Out of Work (UC)

DWP - Sickness (UC)

DWP: Pension Service - Means tested

EDUC-Learning& Skills - >17-24

SPEC ADVICE - Housing

SPEC ADVICE- Other

TRAVEL-disabled Parking schemes

CHARITIES Age (>25 and under pension age)

CHARITIES Age (over pension age)

EDUC Learning& Skills- <16

HMRC Other

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: Council Tax

SPEC ADVICE- Family/DV

WELLBEING-Community Involvment/Volunteering-…

Table 2

Signposts Out

Page 74



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

23 
 

Volunteers Accessing 
Training and Support  

67 
 

65 71   70 

Volunteers Moving on to 
Training / Employment  

4 2 5  6 TBC 

Total Volunteer Hours 
 

6,968 6760 7384  13,728 30,000 

Additional narrative on referral  sources / referrals out if needed:  
 
 

 

MARKETING 

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD Annual 
Target 

No of Website Hits   13,743 14,286 12,586    

Translation of Website 
Sessions 

76 91 182    

Narrative including:  
.  

 

FUNDING 

Please give details of any other funding sources applied for and secured:  
 We have been refunded on our Edward Holt funding for another year £32,750 
Our Money Advice contract has been extended for another year £270,000 
 

SAFEGUARDING 

Please give brief details of any safeguarding issues:  
 
No issues 

 

PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

Quarter 3 Policy and campaigns update: 
 

 Input into credit union development plan. 

 Meeting and support agreement for The Naz, Broughton. 

 Section 21 Housing Law national consultation – hosting and supporting city wide response. 

 Input into Locality Plan re-drafting. 

 Involvement with ‘Holiday Hunger’ working group. 

 Support to, and attendance at launch of ‘Salford Silks’ project. 

 Meeting of Salford Food Share Network. 

 Support around food bank re-financing / restructuring. 

 Input into, and launch of Salford as a Living Wage City. 

 Joint work with mayor to write to all EU citizens about EU settlement scheme. 

 Work to establish new support service in Salford around EU settlement scheme. 

 Salford Royal ‘Intensive Users’ event. 

Page 75



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

24 
 

 National Citizens Advice conference. 

 Red Box project – support to ceremonial mayor’s charity. 

 Work with Kellogg’s around support for breakfast club take up, and funding for SFSN. 

 Attendance and involvement with Salford VCSE Leaders. 

 Support – providing trustee – for Irlam and Cadishead Food Bank, and discussions around 
development. 

 Member of City Mayor’s Inclusive Economy Strategy writing group 

 Attendance at Bank of England expert panel. 

 Various Xmas event attendances. 

 Hosting and managing emergency food access over Xmas period closure. 

 Discussions with Booths to finalise funding for domestic abuse project. 

 Joint Pension Credit Take-up campaign with Age UK. 

 Various radio interviews and press pieces. 

 Meeting of the Salford Advice and Information Network. 

 Meeting to discuss support to Mustard Tree. 

 GM Citizens Advice joint working and support. 

 Spectrum (Autism) Parent Carer Group 

 CHWP Re-launch Open Day 

 Salford Together All Neighbourhoods Development Day  

 Ordsall, Claremont Neighbourhood Leadership Meetings 
 

 

 

 

 

SATISFACTION AND FEEDBACK 

 QTR 1 
 

QTR 2 
 

QTR 3 QTR 4 
2018 

YTD Annual 
TGT 

Satisfaction surveys completed  402 393 402  1,197 5,000 

Satisfaction rating  96% 98% 97.5%  97% 
average 

90% 

Complaints*       
Complements*       

Please provide additional narrative below as needed:  

 Complaints -  

  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 76



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

25 
 

PCAS SERVICE (Palliative Care)  

Clients Supported 

 

 

 

 

 

Age Q3 2019 

 

 

Gender Q3 2019 

 

6%

8%

12%

12%

14%

16%

10%

12%

6%

2%

45-49 50-54

55-59 60-64

65-69 70-74

75-79 80-84

85-89 90-94

37%

59%

4%

Female

Male

Not recorded/not
applicable

Actual Target 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD  

70 65 82  217  300 

      

      

      

      

Page 77



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

26 
 

Ethnicity Q3 2019

 

 

 

Disability or Long Term Health Condition Q3 2019

 

 

2% 2%

69%

6%

20%

Asian or Asian British - Indian

Black or Black British - Other

White - British

White - English

Not recorded/not applicable

20%

71%

8%
Disabled

Long Term Health

Not recorded/not
applicable

Page 78



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

27 
 

Details of Health Condition Q3 2019 

 

 

Religion Q3 2019

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Mental Health Physical
Impairment (non-

sensory)

Other Disability or
Type Not Given

Multiple
Impairments

Not recorded/not
applicable

6%

2%

12%

80%

No religion

Christian - Catholic

Christian (any denominations)

Not recorded/not applicable

Page 79



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

28 
 

Local Authority Ward Q3 2019

 

 

Types of Intervention/ Work Level q3 

 

  

 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

Barton

Broughton

Cadishead

Eccles

Irlam

Irwell Riverside

Kersal

Langworthy

Little Hulton

Ordsall

Pendlebury

Swinton North

Swinton South

Walkden North

Walkden South

Weaste and Seedley

Winton

Worsley

Other

QTR 3

60%

40%
Assisted Information

Generalist Advice

Page 80



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

29 
 

Issues PCAS Q3 2019 

 

Benefit Gains (£) PCAS Q3 2019  

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New Style JSA  0 £0 £5,210  £5,210 

Universal Credit 0 £0 £0  £0 

New Style ESA  0 £29,874 £6,302  £36,176 

Income Support 0 £0 £0  £0 

Housing Benefit  0 £9,880 £0  £9880 

Council Tax Reduction 0 £921 £574  £1,495 

Disability Living Allowance  3351 £3,351 £0  £6,702 

Personal Independence 
Payment 7740 £40,035 £17,073  

£60,290 

Attendance Allowance  47140 £45,536 £18,232  £110,908 

Working / Child Tax Credits 0 £10,832 £0  £10,832 

Child benefit 0 £3,182 £0  £3,182 

Pension Credit 0 £8,957 £0  £8,957 

Carers Allowance 0 £3,440 £0  £3,440 

Localised Welfare SDSS 0 £0 £0  £0 

Passported Help 0 £0 £0  £0 

Other eg Bereave, SRP 0 £0 £0  £0 

Total 58,231 £156,009 £47,391  £257,073 

 

 

 

 

79%

4%

1%

2%
1%

5%

7%

1%
Benefits & tax credits

Benefits Universal Credit

Debt

Health & community care

Housing

Other

Travel & transport

Utilities & communications

Page 81



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

30 
 

 

Waiting Times  / Non- Cancer     

PCAS 

2019 

Average Waiting Time  Longest Wait Target 

QTR 

1 

QTR 2 QTR 

3 

QTR 

4 

QTR 

1 

QTR 

2 

QTR 

3 

QTR 4  

 2 1.8 2  6 8 5  5 

Non Cancer Diagnosis 3% 11% 7%      5% 

          

Narrative as needed:  

In Q3, no wait exceed the pathway.  

Total number of referrals was 41 

 

 

Quality Of Life Feedback 

Due to the vulnerability of clients and unpredictability of their health problems, we ask clients at the 

end of their case if they would like a phone call to complete a short survey about the impact of the 

service. Clients are also offered postal surveys, 8 of these were sent. 

Between October and December 2019, 5 clients returned client satisfaction questionnaire.    
Detailed responses below.  
 
 100% were ‘Very satisfied’ or ‘satisfied’ with the service.   
 
 80% clients stated this was the first time they had received independent advice.  
 
100% reported the service helped them obtain a financial gain.  When asked how monies gained 
following advice/assistance would be spent  
 

● 40% stated that the service helped them purchase better food 
● 100% stated that the service helped them afford  better transport and  parking 
● 20% stated the service helped them afford prescriptions or other health or care costs 
● 20% stated that the service helped them pay for Housing Costs 
● 20%  stated that the service helped them pay for essential Utilities 

 
80 % stated the service helped with Quality of life and coping skills 

● 50%  stated the service relieved financial pressure and stress  
● 75%  stated the service helped them make decisions about care and support they wanted 
● 100%  stated the service helped them focus more on family/personal affairs 
● 75%  stated the service made them aware of other agencies that could help 

 
Unprompted comments  

Page 82



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

31 
 

“I found the service a godsend as the form filling can be very daunting. I would also have no idea 

that I was entitled to benefits I now receive. It made a big difference to my finances which lessened 

the stress.” 

“Nothing I would change. Angela all was very helpful and nice to speak to.” 

 

EFAS SERVICE 

Clients Supported 

 

 

 

 

 

Age Q3 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37%

33%

7%

15%

4%
4%

20-24 25-29

30-34 35-39

40-44 45/49

Actual Target 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD  

41 24 30  95  75 

      

      

      

      

Page 83



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

32 
 

 

Gender Q3 2019 

 

 

Ethnicity Q3 2019 

 

100%

0%

Female

Male

4%

11%

4%

4%

52%

7%

19%

Asian or Asian British - Other

Black or Black British - African

Black or Black British -
Caribbean

Other Arab

White - British

White - Other

Not recorded/not applicable

Page 84



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

33 
 

Disability or Long Term Health Condition Q3 2019

 

 

Religion Q3 2019 

 

11%

81%

7%
Long-Term Health
Condition

Not disabled/no
health problems

Not recorded/not
applicable

41%

19%

7%

33%

No religion

Christian (any denominations)

Muslim

Not recorded/not applicable

Page 85



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

34 
 

Local Authority Ward Q3 2019

 

Types of Intervention/ Work Level Q3 2019 

 

  

 

 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%

Barton

Broughton

Cadishead

Eccles

Irlam

Irwell Riverside

Langworthy

Little Hulton

Pendlebury

Swinton North

Swinton South

Walkden South

Weaste and Seedley

Other

QTR 3

74%

26%

Assisted Information

Generalist Advice

Page 86



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

35 
 

Issues EFAS Q3 2019 

 

Benefit Gains (£) EFAS 

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New Style JSA  0 £0 £0  £0 
Universal Credit £67,925 £29,667 £34,437  £128,846 

New Style ESA 0 £0 £0  £0 

Income Support 0 £0 £0  £0 

Housing Benefit  £2,603 £0 £0  £2,603 

Council Tax Reduction £28 £0 £1,206  £1,234 

Disability Living Allowance  0 £0 £0  £0 

Personal Independence 
Payment £3,052 £0 £0  £3,052 

Attendance Allowance  0 £0 £0  £0 

Working / Child Tax Credits £12,539 £0 £0  £12,539 

Child benefit £21,772 £5,039 £5,729  £32,540 

Pension Credit 0 £0 £0  £0 

Carers Allowance 0 £0 £0  £0 

Localised Welfare SDSS £40 £0 £0  £0 

Passported Help £1,786 £322 £1096  £2,831 

Other eg Bereave, SRP £34,389 £16,097 £31,372  £75,869 

Total £144,134 £51,125 £73,840  £259,584 

 Narrative as needed:  
Gains in ‘other’ category consist of Statutory Maternity payments , Maternity Allowance, Maternity Grants 
and Healthy Start  . 
 
  

 

52%

26%

1%

9%

6%

1% 1%

3%

1% 1% *Benefits & tax credits

Benefits Universal Credit

Education

Employment

Financial services & capability

*Health & community care

Housing

Immigration & asylum

Other

Relationships & family

Page 87



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

36 
 

 

Waiting Times  

EFAS 

2019 

Average Waiting Time  Longest Wait Target 

QTR 

1 

QTR 2 QTR 

3 

QTR 

4 

QTR 

1 

QTR 

2 

QTR 

3 

QTR 4  

 5 -   9 -    

Narrative as needed:  

We are unable to provide data due to changes to the booking system, which now doesn’t 

report ‘next available appointments’  or ‘client choice’ 

 

 

DFAS SERVICE (Disabled Children)  

Clients Supported Q3 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

Age Q3 2019 

 

 

2%

14%

18%

27%

18%

7%

9%

5% 20-24 25-29

30-34 35-39

40-44 45-49

50-54 65-69

Actual Target 

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD  

77 69 53  199  200 

      

      

      

      

Page 88



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

37 
 

Gender Q3 2019 

 

 

77%

18%

5%

Female

Male

Not recorded/not
applicable

Page 89



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

38 
 

Ethnicity Q3 2019

 

Disability or Long Term Health Condition Q3 2019

 

2%
9% 2%

2%

5%

2%

2%

50%

2%

23%

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani

Black or Black British - African

Black or Black British -
Caribbean

Mixed - Other

Mixed - White & Black African

Mixed - White & Black
Caribbean

Other - Any Other

White - British

White - English

Not recorded/not applicable

5%

14%

59%

23%

Disabled

Long-Term Health
Condition

Not disabled/no
health problems

not recorded

Page 90



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

39 
 

Religion Q3 2019 

 

Local Authority Ward Q3 2019

 

 

20%

5%

7%

14%

55%

No religion

Jewish

Muslim

Christian (any denominations)

Not recorded

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18%

Barton

Boothstown and Ellenbrook

Broughton

Claremont

Irlam

Irwell Riverside

Kersal

Langworthy

Little Hulton

Ordsall

Pendlebury

Swinton North

Swinton South

Walkden North

Walkden South

Weaste and Seedley

Winton

Other

QTR 3

Page 91



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

40 
 

 

Types of Intervention/ Work Level Q3 2019 

 

 

Issues DFAS Q3 2019 

 

 

Benefit Gains (£) DFAS 2019 

 QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 YTD 

New Style JSA 0 £0 £0  £0 

Universal Credit £13,468 £65,041 £23,601  £102,110 

New Style ESA £0 £0 £0  £0 

Income Support £0 £0 £0  £0 

Housing Benefit  £0 £3,670 £3,956  £7,626 

Council Tax Reduction £0 £1,539 £1,023  £2,562 

37%
18%

12%

Assisted Information

Generalist Advice

Case Work

74%

12%

7%

2%
2%

3%

2%
*Benefits & tax credits

Benefits Universal Credit

*Health & community care

Housing

Legal

Other

Travel & transport

Page 92



Citizen’s Advice Contract Monitoring Booklet  

41 
 

Disability Living Allowance  £61,969 £94,131 £59,440  £215,267 

Personal Independence 
Payment £9,960 £11,344 £0  

£21,304 

Attendance Allowance  £0 £0 £0  £0 

Working / Child Tax Credits £12,870 £20,597 £0  £33,467 

Child benefit £0 £0 £0  £0 

Pension Credit £0 £0 £1,916  £1,916 

Carers Allowance £710 £24,079 £3,440  £28,229 

Localised Welfare SDSS £0 £0 £0  £0 

Passported Help £0 £0 £0  £0 

Other eg Bereave, SRP £0 £4,530 £1,029  £4,909 

Total £98,977 £224,931 £94,405  £417,663 

Narrative as needed:  
 
 

  

 

 

 

Waiting Times  

DFAS 

2019 

Average Waiting Time  Longest Wait Target 

QTR 

1 

QTR 2 QTR 

3 

QTR 

4 

QTR 

1 

QTR 

2 

QTR 

3 

QTR 4  

 3 -   7 -   5 

Narrative as needed 

We are unable to provide data due to changes to the booking system, which now doesn’t 

report ‘next available appointments’  or ‘client choice’ 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service
2019 - 2020 Q3

October – December 2019

Page 95



Overview

Staff Training and Development

Staff have attended training on Rent possessions proceedings and tactics, DRO law and 
theory, Mental Health first aid, FCA Compliance, Data Security Awareness (NHSD), 
Supervision skills and best practice.

21 27
40

12 9 14 18 13
26

82
83 51 113

102
83

99

84
47

40 34

30

25
34

46

38

37

39

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19

Client 
Work Type

Neither

Benefits only

Benefits & Debt

Debt only

101
113

88

118 125
110

125
109

94

27

25

25

21 14
23

22

13

11

15
6

8

11 6 10

8

12

7

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19

New & 
Continuing 

Clients

Returning Client

New Clients

Continuing Clients

Page 96



Case Study 1

We assisted a client with a large amount of debt. The client had a number of both physical and 
mental health difficulties and had a history of childhood trauma. He was unable to work due to his 
health and income was from income related Employment and Support Allowance and disability 
benefits. The client was referred to us by his community psychiatric nurse form his community 
mental health centre. When assessed, he had over £21000 of debt and he was struggling day to day 
to manage the minimum payments. The debts were a mixture of credit cards, overdrafts and loans, 
all taken out due to struggling with a low income. He was prioritising paying back the debts over 
buying food for himself and could see no way out of his situation. After completing a full debt 
assessment, we discussed options with the client and his preferred option was bankruptcy. The 
client was extremely anxious about the bankruptcy process and was worried that this would lead to 
imprisonment. We were able to reassure him that this was not the case and that bankruptcy would 
allow him to start again. The application was successful and the bankruptcy approved for the client. 
He was very happy and said that he was now buying food again and eating well and felt that his life 
and health had improved.

Case Study 2

We also helped a client who was on benefits and struggling financially. She also had some water 
debt. She was only in receipt of basic universal credit. We assisted her to apply for personal 
independence payment and this was refused and we helped her through requesting a mandatory 
reconsideration and also an appeal. The client was considering not going through with the appeal 
process as she felt let down by the system and that she would not benefit from this. We were able 
to reassure her that this was worth pursuing and she decided to go ahead and attend her appeal. 
The appeal was allowed and she was awarded enhanced rate of daily living component. Due to the 
amount of time waiting for an outcome she was also awarded backdated payments of £8716, which 
allowed her to repay debts and stabilised her financial situation. 

Notable successes

We have helped a client with debts totalling £45502. We discussed available options with the client 
for dealing with the debt and he did not want to pursue any formal debt solution due to future work 
prospects, therefore he opted to see if his debts could be written off of the grounds of his mental 
health. The client was under services and he been unwell for many years, with suicidal ideation and 
the debts had built up when he had a serious breakdown in his mental health. We were able to 
obtain some excellent medical evidence from his community psychiatric nurse and we wrote to all of 
his creditors requesting this and have so far had good success with £26615 being written off for the 
client so far. 

Page 97



4% 1%

9%

86%

Shared Clients
with Advocacy

Advocacy (IMHA)

Advocacy (Care Act)

Advocacy
(Community)

Not Shared

73

1
7

61

13

5

24

13
18

1

39

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Client Outreach 

9

2

39

6

2

45

10

17

12

17

16

9

19

5

7

7

4

3

29

4

7

8

1

29

3

3

55

6

18

6

18

14

14

16

11

4

10

6

3

22

7

5

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Barton

Boothstown & Ellenbrook

Broughton

Cadishead

Claremont

Eccles

Irlam

Irwell Riverside

Kersal

Langworthy

Little Hulton

Ordsall

Outside Salford

Pendlebury

Swinton North

Swinton South

Walkden North

Walkden South

Weaste & Seedley

Winton

Worsley

Salford Ward

This Quarter Last Quarter

Page 98



4 1 2

217

13

52

1
0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

225

250

Autism
Spectrum

Dementia Learning Mental Health None Physical Sensory

Comorbidity

92

67

29

23

29

43

4

35

0

49

6

0 20 40 60 80 100

Depression

Anxiety

Bipolar

PTSD

Personality
Disorder

Schizophrenia

*ADHD

*Low Mood

SAD / SABD

Other

None

Type of Mental Health Issue

12%

14%

2%

3%

4%

2%

0% 5% 10% 15%

Depression

Anxiety

Bipolar

PTSD

Personality
Disorder

Schizophrenia

Incidence in general population 
(for comparison)

Sources: HSCIC Household survey & National 
Mind, home-based only

Page 99



25.7%

26.6%22.8%

16.3%
8.5%0

10%

31%

45%

14%
0%0%

Client Age

18-29

30-44

45-59

60-74

75+

Unknown / No
Answer

Inset:

Salford
51%

48%

0% 1%
Client Gender

Male

Female

Other/transgender

Unknown / No
Answer

82%

1%2%
3%

3%

5%

2%
2%

Client Ethnicity

White British

White Irish

White Other

Mixed (All)

Asian (All)

Black (All)

Other

Unknown / No Answer

Inset:

Salford

30%

43%

2%1%0%0%2%

22%

Client Religion

Christian

None

Jewish

Muslim

Buddhist

Hindu

Other Religion

Unknown / No Answer

Inset:

Salford

82%

2%

4%
0% 12%

Client Sexuality

Heterosexual

Bisexual

Gay/Lesbian

Other

Unknown / No
Answer

61%

25%

14%

Self Define 
as Disabled

Yes

No

Unknown / No
Answer

8%

86%

4%1%1%

Employment
Status

Employed

Unemployed

Retired

Student

Unknown / No
Answer

Inset:

Salford

31%

11%

58%

Client 
Case Status

Active

Closed

OpenPage 100



18

104

196

157

93

57

70

82

56

35

0 50 100 150 200 250

Use of credit products

Drawing up a budget

Ways of dealing with debts or arrears

Increasing income

Ways of dealing with creditors

Reducing money spent

Reducing household bills

Who to contact for help with debts

Referral for financial capability advice

Saving for the futire

None of the above

Type of Debt Advice Given

4

7

59

110

5

49

2

2

44

91

37

6

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Carer's Allowance

Child Tax Credit

Council Tax Benefit

ESA

Guaranteed Pension Credit

Housing Benefit

Income Support

JSA (Income Based)

Other Benefit

PIP / Attendance Allowance

Universal Credit

Working Tax Credit

Type of Benefits Discussed

Page 101



Type Total Clients Average Value

Debts Managed £72,756 9 £8,084

Debts Written Off £53,452 11 £4,859

Lump Sums Received £33,077 10 £3,308

Monthly Benefits Received £8,485 pcm 21 £404 pcm

ESA 4

PIP / Attendance Allowance 18

Housing Benefit

Carers Allowance 1

Child Tax Credits

Income Support

Council Tax Benefit

Universal Credit 1

Guaranteed Pension Credit

Other Benefit 1

Monetary Outcomes

Additional Benefits

Current themes

The service is still very busy across all outreaches. We have had more clients 
struggling with unsecured debt this quarter and enquiring about insolvency.  We 
are also still seeing a large number of clients wanting to request a mandatory 
reconsideration of Personal Independence Payment decisions. We have had an 
increase in seeing clients now in receipt of Universal Credit and wanting advice on 
how to deal with deductions.  

Page 102



 Sample A – going out to tender

Part 1: Open to the public
Or
Part 2: Closed to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Service Reform

TO

Procurement Board

ON

11 March 2020

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for Key Cities Public Relations contract

RECOMMENDATION:

That Procurement Board grant authority for the Key Cities Public Relations support 
to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules through 
an open tender.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition for the delivery 
of the above mentioned project.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A

KEY DECISION: Not at this stage.

DETAILS: 

Key Cities is the UK’s city leadership network – with 25 member cities spanning the 
length and breadth of England and Wales, and with a collective population of over 6.5 
million.  Key Cities is the recognised democratic and authentic voice of urban Britain. 

Salford City Council has recently been elected interim Chair and secretariat of the Key 
Cities Network – and the position of interim chair is held by the Council’s Deputy City 
Mayor.   As part of this role, the city council provides support services (legal, 

Page 103

Agenda Item 5d



 Sample A – going out to tender

procurement, financial etc) to Key Cities and acts as the lead authority for Key Cities. 
(Between now and July 2020, the secretariat functions are shared between Wakefield 
and Salford Councils).

The network is support by external public relations, media and communications, and 
policy development and research support.  This enables relationships with 
Government (ministers and civil servants) to be developed, national events and 
conferences to be held that influence and shape national policy and funding 
developments.

The work to be commissioned includes policy and media support services to underpin 
increased awareness and influence of the Key Cities Network and its activity. The 
organisation commissioned to provide this support will be expected to work 
collaboratively with all the members of the Network. It is expected that successful 
delivery of these services would increase the influence of Key Cities on national and 
regional policies as well as maintenance or an increase in membership of the Network 
itself. 

Key Cities aims to be a ‘go to’ national network that significantly shapes and informs 
economic and social policy with both the UK Government and devolved 
administrations.  The services to be commissioned will be critical to achieving this goal, 
and will include:

 Development of policy position statements in response to emerging national 
issues or driven by specific Key Cities’ needs. 

 Creation and publication of blog and other online content, to raise awareness 
of case studies, share good practice directly relevant to cities and to introduce 
thought provoking and innovative ideas and concepts.

 Facilitation of an All Party Parliamentary Group, including arranging and 
facilitating quarterly meetings, identification of key themes, securing 
involvement of members of Parliament from all parties and cities, other 
stakeholders and guest speakers, and managing all practical arrangements. 

 Public relations activity – including proactive and responsive social media 
campaigns, securing a wider range of media and specialist press opportunities 
to highlight the work and opportunities of Key Cities, and supporting the Key 
Cities secretariat at events and as required. 

The capacity to deliver this work does not exist within the Council, or across the Key 
Cities Network.  Agreement to go to tender will ensure capacity is in place to enable 
the Network to continue to function and will enable us to explore alternative 
organisations able to deliver these services.  

A current contract is in place with the existing secretariat (Wakefield Council) until the 
end of June.  It is envisaged a future contract will be in place for three years, with the 
option for further monthly extensions. The contract term will though be subject to 
negotiation during the tender evaluation process, and further decision by Procurement 
Board.  A maximum value over the three year period will be determined as part of the 
tender process. 

Page 104



 Sample A – going out to tender

Key Cities Network activity is funded by membership fees paid by each member of the 
network.  There is no financial draw on Salford City Council over and above our 
contribution to the Network.

A further report will be brought back to Procurement Board reporting the outcomes of 
the evaluation process and seeking agreement to enter a contract. -

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

The Key Cities Network supports Salford’s delivery of the Great 8. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Not applicable at this stage.  Equality impact will be considered as part of the tender 
evaluation.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Medium. Salford is acting as lead authority for the Key Cities Network – and these 
services will support the Network as a whole.  

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Key Cities Network membership contributions. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 2129 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council must comply with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 
(PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), 
Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social value, failing which the award 
of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The report sets out that the Council proposes to enter into a compliant open 
procurement process to commission a provider to deliver the services referred to in 
the report as the incoming secretariat to the “Key Cities Network”. The tender exercise 
will give some comfort to the Council (and other members of the group) in ensuring 
that value for money is being obtained and tested, with open competition maintained. 
The carrying out of a compliant procurement exercise will ensure that the risk of 
challenge to the eventual award of the contract is minimal and that any challenge, 
should it materialise, is unlikely to be successful.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Leanne Wrigley 0161 793 3354

Source of funding: Key Cities Network membership contributions. 

Page 105



 Sample A – going out to tender

This is a tender (and contract) that Salford will manage as lead authority and 
secretariat for the Key Cities Group (a national network of 25 mid-size cities and 
towns. This contract, and Salford’s support costs subject to an SLA, will be met by 
membership fees, and in that respect an annual budget of £240k will transfer to 
Salford from 1 July to that effect. . Confirmation has been provided that the 25 
member contributions will provide the funding required for this.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager 
x6243

All procurement activity in relation to this project is to be carried out in compliance 
with Contractual Standing Orders.

The intention is to advertise this as an open tender on the Chest.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: 

Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:

Not applicable. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Not applicable.  Wakefield Council as the existing Key Cities secretariat has been 
consulted. 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jacquie Russell
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 793 3577

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

N/A

Page 106



Part 1: Open to the public

Or

Part 2: Closed to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Service Reform

TO

Procurement Board

ON

11 March 2020

 

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Electronic Payment Services via 
PayPoint and Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL)

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approves the award of the Contract for Electronic Payment 
Services via PayPoint and Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL) as detailed in the table 
below:

Page 107

Agenda Item 5e



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Electronic Payment Services via PayPoint and 

Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL)

Name of Successful Contractor Allpay Ltd
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
02933191

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME

Contract Value ££79,816.87 Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration 48 months

Contract Start Date 01/04/2020
Contract End Date 31/03/2024

Optional Extension Period 1 months
Optional Extension Period 2 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Choose an item.

Contact Officer (Name & number) Tony Thompstone
Lead Service Group Finance & Corporate Business

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement) Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date

Procurement for Housing Framework (PfH 2019) 
for the provision of Electronic Payments

Funding Source Revenue Budget

Page 108



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None 

KEY DECISION:  

No – the total contract value is below £350k

DETAILS: 

1. Background,

The current Allpay contract allows customers to pay council bills at the Post Office 
and at PayPoint outlets across the City. The decision was taken to offer this service 
to bill payers as an alternative method as the cash desks were being closed. This 
gave bill payers access to many more outlets across the City, including more 
flexibility around availability with many of them being open at evening and weekends.

In 2016 the Council entered into new contracts with Allpay for the provision of these 
services for a period of two years with the option to extend for a further 2 x 12 month 
periods.  This contract and extensions ends in March 2020.

The Finance team has closely monitored the contract throughout its initial term and 
is satisfied with the service levels provided by Allpay are satisfactory and there have 
been no issues with the contract to date.  

The council is changing its income management system from PARIS to Civica pay, 
the project is due to go live in April.  The first stage is to replicate the current system, 
this includes an import routine in PARIS to analyse a daily file from Allpay and 
update SAP and Northgate with the payments received. As the change over from 
PARIS to Civica pay is scheduled for April 2020 a change of provider away from 
Allpay at the same time would add risk to the project because the import routine and 
analysis for the update of SAP and Northgate would need amending for the new 
provider at the same time as the system switch from PARIS to Civica pay was being 
implemented.  

Additionally with the post office acquisition of Pay Zone, they are in the process of 
merging both services and Allpay are expecting to have full access to the Pay Zone 
network from 1st April this year.

Page 109



2. The Procurement Process

a. Do nothing and remain with the existing providers

The risk to doing this would be that the Council is again extending the contract 
for a further year without undertaking a compliant procurement process.  Costs 
could increase and the Council would be at risk of increased transactions rates.

b. Conduct a tender exercise from scratch 

As there is more than one framework available for this type of service, it was 
not considered necessary to conduct a full tender exercise from scratch.  
Contractual standing orders stipulate that where there is an existing framework 
this should be used unless there is an auditable reason not to.

c. Direct call-off from an existing framework

After reviewing the different methods of procurement it was identified that the 
Procurement for Housing Framework reflected a recent procurement exercise 
which was awarded in 2019. Being part of framework agreement provides value 
for money in relation to larger transaction volumes and therefore reduced 
transactional costs.

Under the PFH 2019 pricing under the new contact is shown below.

Volumes PFH 2019 Pricing
Price Cost

Paypoint 61,364 0.46£     28,503.58£    
Post Office                109,410 0.47£     51,313.29£    
Total 170,774 79,816.87£    

This represents an increase of £85.37 over the costs of the current contract.  
Allpay will also write off an outstanding amount of £6,500 which was 
undercharged on the current agreement as the volume of transactions has not 
met the volume threshold for the prices charged. 

3. Social Value 

Allpay is committed to improving communities both locally and within its Members 
locations. One of the key challenges to delivering this to the marketplace is the 
services are not area specific and are offered on the same basis across the whole of 
the UK. The impact on development of communities is therefore limited in scope but 
by and large can be encapsulated by giving communities the greatest convenience 
to settle their bill payments.

By offering multiple payment opportunities and channels we increase social and 
economic wellbeing within communities; payers can pay more quickly, more flexibly, 
can set up regular payments or pay at a time to suit them.

Page 110



Members are able to reconcile accounts more quickly and are able to streamline 
their processes and free up valuable resource that might have been used to handle 
cash or reconcile paper payments.

Allpay have been accredited by the Living Wage Foundation and recognised for 
supporting employees by paying the real Living Wage. Allpay were Herefordshire’s 
first Living Wage employer.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Budget strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The addition of the Payzone as a payment option will increase the payment options 
available to customers.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

It is essential that the City Council continues to offer a range of electronic payment 
services as well as accepting payments via credit and debit cards, to receive income 
from bill payers. Removing these options would mean considerable risk of loss of 
income if the services were removed.  As the income management system is changing 
from PARIS to Civica pay in April it is prudent to use Allpay for a further year whilst the 
switch from PARIS to Civica pay is completed.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

Revenue budget 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework agreement 
exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable reason not to.

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 

Page 111



works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). The 
definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes framework 
agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more contracting 
authorities.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council can call 
off the goods/services from one or more of the providers who have been selected to 
be on the Framework and this may be through any number of ways (usually by way of 
mini-competition as here) depending on the circumstances. A contract will then be 
formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The Council will need to have 
followed the procedure set out in the Framework Agreement to ensure the 
procurement process for direct award is compliant, and assuming that the be the case, 
the procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and compliant with the 
requirements of CSO’s and public procurement legislation.

The proposed award of the contract follows a direct award in accordance with the 
Procurement for Housing Framework (PfH) the Council to a contract for four year 
period. The PfH arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative 
perspective available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The Council’s Constitution sets out in CSO’s that as the value of the contract is under 
£150,000, the approval may be made by the Strategic Director.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  The Finance Team 

Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Thompstone, Strategic Finance Manager                                     
Tel No. 793-2016

Date provided: 05/11/2019

The source of funding is: The revenue budget

Expenditure Code: C0111

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Emma Heyes, Category Manager 
x 6243 

Contractual Standing Orders states that where there is a suitable framework, this must 
be used unless there is an auditable reason not to do so.  

The PfH framework is fully OJEU complaint, and was put in place for a period of four 
years, commencing 25th September 2019 until 24th September 2023.  Call-Off 
contracts under the framework can be for a period of up to four years.

Direct award is permissible under the framework rules, therefore the procurement 
process followed is compliant.

Page 112



OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

CONTACT OFFICER:  Tony Thompstone TEL. NO.793 2016

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): N/A

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY

ON 24TH FEBRUARY 2020

AND

PROCUREMENT BOARD FOR DECISION

ON 11TH MARCH 2020

TITLE: Request to go out to tender - Salford Residents Funeral Service

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
That Procurement Board agree approval to go to tender re the Salford Residents 
Funeral Service.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
Funeral poverty is recognised within Salford City Council’s antipoverty strategy. A 
key aim in that strategy is the continued development of the Salford Residents 
Funeral Service to reduce funeral costs for bereaved families on low incomes. 
Following the previous tender process undertaken Salford City Council appointed 
Kane’s Funeral Service to deliver the service which commenced in October 2018 
under a 2 year contractual agreement. Following the successfully delivery , to date, 
of this contract  the Bereavement Services section are now seeing approval to tender 
for the Salford Residents Funeral Services with anticipated start date of October 
2020.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Lead member report – 25th September 2017
 DDN approval to tender – 23rd January 2018
 DDN award of contract – 9th May 2018
 Lead member report – 14th June 2018
 Lead member report – 9th September 2018

Page 115

Agenda Item 5f



2

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS: 
Salford City Council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy Vision is ‘our vision is for a fairer and 
more inclusive Salford where everyone is able to reach their full potential and live 
prosperous and fulfilling lives free from poverty and inequality’

‘Funeral poverty’ is recognised within the Salford City Council Anti-Poverty Strategy 
and has key actions which look to the ‘development of a strategic approach to tackling 
funeral poverty in Salford. 

A key strand of this was developing a New Salford Residents Funeral Service to reduce 
costs for bereaved families on low incomes.

As per the DDN on 9/5/2018 and noted by Lead Member on 14/6/2018 the contract to 
deliver the Salford Residents Funeral Service was awarded to Kane’s Funeral Service 
following the appropriate procurement exercise.

The aim of this initiative was to provide Salford residents with a funeral service which 
is competitively priced yet provides all the elements of a ‘traditional’ funeral service.

The service itself has been advertised as the Salford Residents Funeral Service 
removing the stigma for those families wishing to purchase a lower priced funeral 
service.  

Following the award of contract in May 2018 and launch of the service in October 2018 
by Kane’s, 77 funeral services have now been undertaken through this initiative 
representing an excellent response to the initiative.

In monetary terms the savings to Salford families who have used the Salford Residents 
Funeral Service equates to £111,573.

This is the difference between the national average costs of a funeral that families pay 
and the fixed price applied by Kane’s.   

Procurement Process – Considering the volume of funerals undertaken through the 
existing Salford Residents Funeral Service concession it is necessary to advertise the 
opportunity through the Chest. The annual contractual value is anticipated to approx. 
£165,000 with the contract period recommended to be 3 years plus 2 further optional 
year’s extension, subject to approval.    

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Fully supports Salford City Council’s antipoverty strategy vison for a fairer and more 
inclusive Salford where everyone is able to reach their potential and live prosperous 
and fulfilling lives free from poverty and inequality. 

Page 116



3

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  Initiative beneficial 
to all services of the community. No further community impact assessment required. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low given extremely positive response to the previous 
contract and from all partners/community. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Considered and not required.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Guest – Salford City Council 
Finance section. The Salford Residents Funeral Service provides lower Funeral costs 
for Salford residents without impacting upon Bereavement Services income. The 
savings to residents comes from reduced charges from the element of the funeral 
services 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement team will support the Bereavement Services to undertake a tender 
exercise to ensure that the correct process and procedures are undertaken to ensure 
compliance with the contractual standing orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Considered and not 
required. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: As indicated above

CONTACT OFFICER: Dominic Clarke

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 925 1109

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO

Procurement Board

ON

11th March 2020

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for Pendleton Roundabout Road Traffic Accident (RTA) Repair Scheme.

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reasons highlighted in the table 
below and the award of the Contract for Pendleton Roundabout Traffic Accident Repair 
Scheme as detailed in the table below:

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Pendleton Roundabout RTA Scheme.

Name of Successful Contractor Eurovia Contracting
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 5292634

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Limited Liability Partnership

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £191,330.28 Full Project
Contract Duration 9 Weeks

Contract Start Date 06/04/2020
Contract End Date 05/06/2020

SCC Structure & Bridges Design Fees £10,140.50

Page 119

Agenda Item 5g



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract to Eurovia Contracting, to deliver the Civil and 
Highway Engineering repairs to Pendleton Roundabout (RTA). 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

1. Work file held in the councils Bridges and Structures Department.

SCC Structure & Bridges Supervision 
Fees £9,757.84

SCC Principal Designer £825.00
How the contract was procured?

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Direct Award/ NEC3 Option A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)
Contact Officer (Name & number) Michael Jolley (Ext 4909)

Lead Service Group Place

The goods / services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other provider 
available to allow genuine competition
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
or services is controlled by a statutory body
Delivers Best Value to the Council
Special education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s best 
interests and to meet the Council’s obligations 
under relevant legislation
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
and services is required so urgently as not to 
permit compliance with the requirements of 
competition
Security works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering process 
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford 
residents

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Procurements made through, or on behalf of, 
any consortium, local authority, statutory or 
similar body, provided that tenders or quotations 
are invited and contracts placed in accordance 
with national or EU legislation.

Funding Source 2019/20 Block 3 Local Transport Capital Budget 
underspend

Page 120



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

KEY DECISION: Yes

DETAILS: 

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 At 12:40pm 27th October 2019 there was a road traffic accident (RTA) involving 
a single car striking the south parapet and portal wall of Broad Street 
Roundabout North West Subway on Pendleton Roundabout.

1.2 The RTA left the vehicular containment system non-functional and a temporary 
vehicle containment barrier (TVCB) was installed to protect road users until the 
replacement system was designed, procured and installed.

1.3 Pedestrian movement through the damaged subway was reviewed and 
identified as acceptable by the Road Safety Group Team.

1.4 The approval for the installed temporary vehicle containment barriers (TVCB) 
is within separate approvals.

1.5 The proposed funding for the scheme is from the under spend of 2019/20 Block 
3 Local Transport Capital Budget, it is intended that the scheme costs will be 
reimbursed by the insurance company of the driver involved in the RTA 

1.6 Eurovia were the only contractor requested to tender and it is proposed that the 
works are to be awarded to Eurovia due to the following rationale;

 Eurovia Contracting are currently undertaking the works for SBNI 4 Delivery 
Package 4, which includes a refurbishment of Broad Street  Roundabout North 
West Subway, therefore; the proposed repairs are currently within Eurovia’s 
work site (until October 2020), which makes it difficult for other contractors to 
undertake the works with regards to a health and safety aspect.

 Eurovia have been successful in winning the tender for the SBNI Delivery 
Package 4 works through a competitive tendering process through the 
Manchester Framework and are currently in contract with the City Council on 
this project.

 It is not ideal to wait for Eurovia to finish their works and award an alternative 
contractor as there is a need for the proposed works to be undertaken as soon 
as possible due to health and safety issue with the TVCB’s.

 Eurovia already have an established work site for the SBNI project, which can 
be utilised for the parapet repair works. This has reduced the potential costs for 
preliminaries for the repair works.

Page 121



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

2.        Details of the works for the Schemes are outlined below

2.1 The Structures & Bridges Team attended site on the 28th October 2019 to 
inspect RTA, which damaged Broad Street Roundabout North West Subway 
and identified that the parapets railings and portal wall were unsafe and 
required repair/ replacement. It was agreed that TVCB’s were to be installed 
until the design/ procurement was in place to commence repair of the 
damaged sections.  

2.2 The proposed works planned will include the following items;

 Replace full parapets system on inside of roundabout (155m) – These are to 
meet current standards. 

 Repair damaged reinforced concrete portal wall – The damaged section will 
require hydro demolition or careful breaking out to protect the existing 
reinforcement.

 Traffic Management during works – Extensive TVCB’s will be required to 
protect the work force during the works with the possibility of lane closure.

2.4 Initially the Structures & Bridges Design Team reviewed whether we could 
repair the damaged section of the parapet in isolation (20m) rather than the 
full system replacement (155m), but after discussion with approved Design 
Manual for Road and Bridges (DMRB), parapet suppliers/ installers it was 
apparent that this was not acceptable due to the following non-compliances;

 It was identified that the current system underperforming all over the network, 
this type of parapet is struggling to contain and redirect modern day errant 
vehicles. They are being breached more often (existing parapet was installed 
in 2004 to the correct standards for the time).

 The 76mm x 50mm horizontal rail section is no longer commercially available 
therefore it would be required to cut in 90mm x 50mm rail sections to replace 
the damaged rails. At present this is not a standard or tested detail, resulting 
in a hybrid system, which will require a departure from the design standards.

 There are hazards directly behind the existing parapets (reinforced concrete 
upstand); the current parapets are unable protect from these upstands. 
Therefore, any impact on the existing parapet will result in deflection on to the 
walls behind.

Page 122



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

3. Budget

3.1 The proposed funding for the scheme is from the under spend of 2019/20 Block 
3 Local Transport Capital Budget, it is intended that the scheme costs will be 
reimbursed by the insurance company of the driver involved in the RTA. 

3.2 The approval for the installed temporary vehicle containment barriers (TVCB) 
is identified within a separate approval.

3.3 Eurovia Contracting provided an original cost for the works of £205,201.63. This 
was reviewed/ evaluated taking into account the savings that could be made 
from using shared resource from the SBNI DP4 works, resulting in a reduced 
cost of £191,330.28, which  is in line with the expected cost of the scheme  in 
terms of value for money. 

3.4 The Structure & Bridges Department Design, Supervision fee (including 
Principal Designer fee’s) for Pendleton Roundabout RTA Scheme are 
£20,723.34.

3.5 The expenditure profile for the scheme is as follows;

Pendleton Roundabout Road Traffic Accident 
Repair Scheme

Cost

Target Cost (Eurovia Contracting) £191,330.28
S&B Design Fee (Subway Repairs 5.3%) £10,140.50
S&B Supervision Fee (5.1%) £9,757.84

Principal Designer £825.00
Total £212,053.62

3.6 The process to recover costs through the insurance process  has begun and a 
loss adjuster has made contact with the 3rd party insurers on behalf of the City 
Council. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Enhancing Life in Salford, Think Efficiency, Improving the Environment.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

There are no adverse implications relating to equality issues. The scheme ensures 
the continued safe movement of the travelling public.

Page 123



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Low – (Parapet Replacements) Funding is available from the Block 3 Local 
Transport Capital Budget 2019/20 underspend. Urban Vision is experienced in 
undertaking similar refurbishment schemes. The parapets in their current condition 
are sub-standard. The proposed works would ensure the safety of the public using 
the carriageway/ subway. 

Replacement with galvanised steel parapets would ensure a minimum of 30 years’ 
service life. Painting of the parapets would introduce a 15 to 20 years repainting 
cycle

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The cost of the works will be funded from the approved Highways Block 3 Capital 
Allocation, for the 2019/20 financial year 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 0161 219 
6323.

Ordinarily, when commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR), which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), and for contracts of this value the Council would 
usually undertake a compliant process by obtaining three quotations from suitably 
qualified contractors. 

The report asks the Procurement Board to grant an exception to CSO’s and directly 
appoint Eurovia to undertake the works at Broad Street roundabout as set out in the 
report. The proposed appointment will ensure the works can be commenced urgently 
whilst Eurovia carry out existing work at Broad Street as part of the SBNI project, with 
them being currently on site, with a site office which will assist in ensuring savings are 
made. 

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from the 
Procurement Board, as detailed in Part 5, there is still a risk of challenge from 
aggrieved providers if a compliant procurement process has not been followed on the 
basis that the works or services should have been put out to competition. The risk of 
challenge naturally increases in tandem with the value of the contract (and/or 
proposed length of any extension to a contract).

In accordance with CSO’s, there are valid reasons set out in the report for the approval 
of the direct appointment, such as the fact that there is a certain urgency required in 
appointing a contractor, the nature of the works, the fact that Eurovia are already on 
site and can show a saving to be made. 
Accordingly, the risk of challenge to the award of the contract may be regarded as 
extremely low in the circumstances.  

Page 124



Exception to CSO’S – Pendleton Roundabout RTA

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Alison Woods, Finance Officer (Capital), 
Tel. 925 1135.

The cost of the aforementioned works will be funded from the approved Highways 
Block 3 Capital Allocation, for the 2019/20 financial year. 

Recovery of the scheme costs relating to the repair of the damaged section of the 
parapet, will be pursued via insurance processes.

Expenditure code: D20031

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team

There is always a risk of challenge when a project has not been competitively 
tendered. The requirement outlined within the report is an urgent repair as a result of 
an accident and is located within the area of works that have been competitively 
tendered through a fully compliant competitive process through the Manchester 
Highways framework.  The recommendation to award to Eurovia Ltd demonstrates 
best value for money and to expedite the repair quickly.  Procurement board is allowed 
to approve exceptions for the reasons set out in the report in compliance with 
contractual standing orders.

CONTACT OFFICER:  Mike Jolley - 4909

Opu Anwar - 4880

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Irwell Riverside and Langworthy.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for People

TO

Procurement Board

ON

11th March 2020 

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for the award of the Contract for Liberty House & The Foyer contract 
exemption plus provision expansion to support No Wrong Door model as detailed in 
the table below:

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the 
table below and the award of the Contract for Liberty House & The Foyer contract 
exception plus provision expansion to support No Wrong Door model as detailed in 
the table below:

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Semi and Independent Living Services for 16 – 
25 year olds plus the details to develop the 
provision at the Foyer to support Route 29.

Name of Successful Contractor Liberty House – Adullam 
The Foyer – Places for People 

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Choose an item.

Contract Value Liberty - 
£126,259 
Foyer - 

Per Annum (estimated average)

Page 127

Agenda Item 5h



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

£109,318 

£69,413.76 – 
4 block beds 
against The 
Foyer linked 
to Route 29 

£17,000 – 
Additional 
member of 
staff to 
support at 
The Foyer 

Contract Duration 6 month extension 
Contract Start Date 22/10/2020
Contract End Date 21/04/2021

Optional Extension Period 1

Optional Extension Period 2
Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.

Contact Officer (Name & number)

Lead Service Group Choose an item.

The goods / services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other provider 
available to allow genuine competition
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
or services is controlled by a statutory body
Delivers Best Value to the Council x
Special education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s best 
interests and to meet the Council’s obligations 
under relevant legislation
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
and services is required so urgently as not to 
permit compliance with the requirements of 
competition
Security works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering process 
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford 
residents

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Procurements made through, or on behalf of, 
any consortium, local authority, statutory or 
similar body, provided that tenders or quotations 
are invited and contracts placed in accordance 
with national or EU legislation.

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Page 128



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract for:

1. Exemption to extend both Liberty House and The Foyer contract by 6 months 
to April 2021

2. Block book 4 additional beds at The Foyer for ROUTE 29 use. This includes 1 
emergency bedsit for 28 days and 3 short to medium term beds with the 
potential to also create revenue for Salford via arrangements with other GM 
authorities who are following No Wrong Door model 

3. In principle request to fund 1 additional staff member to work at the Foyer linked 
specifically to Route 29 should the pilot period of a Route 29 outreach worker 
attached to the Foyer not be successful

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Options paper Route 29 & The Foyer

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS: 

1. Contract exemption to extend both Liberty House and The Foyer 
contract by 6 months to April 2021

Children’s Services inherited Liberty House and the Foyer from the Supporting 
People Programme. Both provisions have been closely monitored and Liberty House 
have made a number of changes at our request to improve the service, but there has 
not been a full review of 16+ provision as a whole. Aligning the contract end dates 
with those of Foundations Ltd, who deliver Lane End and Claremont Road provision 
for care leavers,  will allow for a full needs assessment the whole programme going 
to the market at the same time.

Liberty House, run by Adullam Homes Housing Association Ltd, is a 16 bed 
supported accommodation service for young homeless/leaving care people aged 
between 16 and 24.  It is situated in a residential area of Higher Broughton, near 
Cheetham Hill. The property consists of 12 bedrooms in the main house and 2 
shared flats for 4 people at the back of the building. Children Services currently 

Page 129



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

commission the support element at Liberty House for £126,259 per annum. The 
remaining cost of the provision is funded by housing benefit. 

The Foyer, run by Places for People Living Plus, is a purpose built 39 bed 
accommodation over two floors. There are currently 31 self-contained bed sits, 4 
shared flats with a separate bedroom/bathroom and 4 one bedroom flats for mums 
and babies. Salford City Council currently commission the support element at 
£109,318 per annum. The remaining cost of the provision is funded by housing 
benefit. 

Both providers are not for profit organisations and subject to quarterly contract 
monitoring

The current contracts for both of these services run to 23rd October 2020. The 
request  is to extend the contract dates for both to 23rd April 2021 to bring the 
contract dates in line with the other SaILS provision contracted by Salford City 
Council and delivered by Foundations Ltd specifically for care leavers; Lane End, 
Eccles, 8 bed and  Claremont, Claremont Rd, 5 bed) 

This will enable Commissioners to complete a full scale review of all the 
accommodation services in Salford aimed at young people aged 16+. The review will 
underpin the next phase of service planning and development. This will allow time to 
test the market for other providers who may be able to offer services within Salford. It 
will also enable Commissioners time to gather evidence relating to the next proposal 
and the effectiveness of this in relation to Route 29. 
 
By extending the contract by 6 months this will also allow time for Route 29 to embed 
and the impact of this initiative will start to become apparent; which will inform future 
commissioning decisions. 

Financial Implication

Liberty - £63,129.50 per 6 months 
Foyer - £54,659 per 6 months 

Total - £117,778 per 6 months for 55 beds in total 
 

2. Block book 4 additional beds at The Foyer for ROUTE 29 use. This 
includes 1 emergency bedsit for 28 days and 3 short to medium term 
beds with the potential to also create revenue for Salford via 
arrangements with other GM authorities who are following No Wrong 
Door model 

3. Initially to support the Foyer with a member of staff from Route 29 3 
days a week to monitor the provision needs and usage. In principle 
request to fund 1 additional Foyer staff member who will be linked 
specifically to Route 29.

Places for People, the organisation who manage The Foyer, are part of the model 
development squad for Route 29. They are funding a refurbishment of The Foyer 

Page 130



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

which will increase capacity with 3 additional flats and 1 bedsit available to Salford 
young people. This will deliver a 16+ move on option for Route 29. Salford Foyer 
statistics show that their capacity is always above 98% with waiting lists. As a 
housing provider it makes sense for them to extend their property as they can see 
the demand for beds.

This proposal will provide 4 additional accommodation options for young people with 
Salford having priority. These are new flats, converting an underused space and they 
will not reduce or compromise the size of any existing provision. Places for People 
Living Plus are funding all the build with no cost to the Local Authority. 

The success of The Foyer model is based on the support staff and key workers are 
able to offer young people to secure employment and training, develop life skills to 
transition into independence and move into their own tenancies. Therefore, it has 
been identified that an additional key worker role is required to support the extra 
capacity. The initial proposal is that this additional staff capacity is met from within 
existing Route 29 staffing profile with a portfolio lead for SaILS and specifically The 
Foyer. The Foyer have agreed to this as a pilot model. However, in the event this 
model is not successful, this paper includes an in principal request for Children’s 
Services to fund a key worker post at £17K per annum. There is no identified funding 
stream for this post. 

Data evidence on why we should work with The Foyer 

The current pathway for a young person requiring accommodation is initially a direct 
referral to Liberty House. If accepted they are assessed and offered a place. There is 
rarely a same day placement as there is very limited capacity for emergencies. 
There is a maximum stay at Liberty House of 6 months and the majority of young 
people from here are referred onto further accommodation. Within the current 
pathway arrangement the move on accommodation is The Foyer. Both providers 
operate at around 98% occupancy with waiting lists. If the provisions are full and 
agreement is given, Salford also use the North West SaILS framework, who are 
unregulated independent providers. 

.During the first 2 quarters of 2019/2020 76% of Liberty’s referrals were from 
Children’s Services with 50% from the Outreach Team and 22% from DAT. This 
demonstrates there is a high demand and it is the same cohort as Route 29 are 
targeting.

22% of the total young people who have been placed at Liberty house over the last 4 
years have returned to a family household; family member; friend or relative. With 
more targeted interventions it is believed young people could be prevented from 
needing accommodation or could return home sooner.

62% of the total young people placed at Liberty in the last 4 years have moved onto 
further supported accommodation which following the existing pathway is The Foyer. 

From The Foyer 48% of young people in the last 3 years have moved onto 
independence which is the predicted pathway. 27% of young people who have 

Page 131



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

moved on from The Foyer in the last 3 years have returned to a family household; 
family member; friend or relative. 

Evictions are recorded separately so it can be concluded that the young people have 
moved back to family as a positive option, not because of a placement break down.

These statistics would suggest that with the right support Young People might be 
prevented from needing accommodation or might be able to move back to family 
sooner. A specific key worker focussing on this group of young people would have a 
significant impact in securing early return to family home and further releasing 
capacity to meet the high demand for placement requests. 

Recommendation 

To utilise the 4 new additional beds at The Foyer for Route 29

Block book 4 additional beds at The Foyer for ROUTE 29 use. This includes 1 
emergency bedsit for 28 days and 3 short to medium term beds with the potential to 
also create revenue for Salford via arrangements with other GM authorities who are 
following the No Wrong Door model. Placements Northwest census data illustrates 
the demand from other LAs for unregulated provision which is currently being spot 
purchased from providers with variable quality and outcomes. 

Route 29 will deploy a member of staff 3 days per week when the provision is first 
opened. This will allow time to monitor and assess the cohort linked to Route 29 and 
the level of staffing that may be required in the future. If this is not effective, an in 
principle request will secure funding for a specific member of staff at £17K per 
annum. 

This will allow Salford to work in partnership with The Foyer to influence the model, 
who is admitted into provision and their pathway onwards. 

Foyer staff will benefit from input from Route 29 specialist roles so outcomes for 
other young people will be strengthened- particularly in terms of understanding 
impact of early trauma. 

By working with The Foyer we benefit from; 

 Quality and trusted provider who delivers against the service specification.
 Further development of Route 29 with wider partners thus fostering 

relationships and sustainability.
 Additional capacity for young people on the edge of care/edging towards care/ 

exit from Route 29 Hub. 
 Capacity for emergency/out of office hour provision up until 10pm.
 Guaranteed beds. 
 Admissions & referral pathway that works for Salford.
 Reduced need to spot purchase from NW 16+framework. (unregulated 

provision)

Page 132



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

The Foyer support staff are onsite until 10pm so will be able to manage out of office 
hour admissions up until this time. With the current process all referrals are 
assessed before being admitted therefore this change will enable Salford to place 
with The Foyer in an emergency instead of using the North West framework.  This 
will save costs as Salford on average spend £735 per week for the unregulated 
market. 

Financial Implication

 £69,413.76 per year for 4 x blocked booked beds (£333.72 x 52 x 4)
 (£333.72 includes service charge and rent)
 Total = £69,413.76

Regional NW Average SaILS = £1,062 per bed per week 
Salford Average SaILS = £765.14 per bed per week

The Foyer proposal
 Rent and service charge £333.72
 Support cost including additional staff member £56.49 (if agreed split over 43 

beds) 
£390.21  = per bed per week 

Potential for Reimbursement

This above cost is a maximum cost. 

For looked after children the housing benefit element is funded by the LA until they 
reach 18 years of age and can claim in their own right. 
If CIN or CP then they can access housing benefit between 16-18 years on evidence 
of an ‘Estrangement from Family’ letter. 

There is also an option to sell any ‘empty’ beds to other local authorities working 
under the No Wrong Door ethos. This is a real possibility as the Placement North 
West census return from June 2019 showed that the other LA’s are paying on 
average more than the cost at The Foyer. 

 Manchester - £685
 Trafford - £1213
 Rochdale - £832
 Wigan - £851
 Warrington - £1192

Summary of benefits of proposal

There is still significant spend on unregulated provision despite the range and choice 
of provision in Salford City.

Page 133



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

 2016/17 - £81,248
 2017/18 - £305,277
 2018/19 - £368,838
 2019/20 - £225,309 

Unregulated provision presents the highest risk in relation to safeguarding and 
quality varies considerably. By minimising the usage of this external market we gain 
greater control and oversight of quality via quality monitoring and regular contact with 
the Salford based provision. 

The new build for the extended part of The Foyer will be ready in Spring 2020. If the 
recommendation to extend the contracts by 6 months is agreed it will be  set up as a 
‘Pilot’ and regularly  reviewed This means at the end of the pilot if we are not seeing 
the results we predict or the local need has changed we are in a position to make 
amendments or end the pilot all together. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

The Great Eight 
Tackling Poverty and Inequality 
Education and skills 
Health and Socical Care 
Housing 
Social impact

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

These proposals will benefit this vulnerable group of 16 and 17 year olds.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

If the exemption to extend is not agreed we would be unable to go to the market at 
the same time for all the provision.

If the additional funding for block booking and additional staffing is not agreed then it 
will hinder the Route 29 service and limit the options for accommodation for Young 
People to move on to. 

It would also result in only housing support being offered (housing benefit) for the 
additional beds. This would impact on the level of support offered (less than the rest 
of the contract) and would compromise the offer. 

Page 134



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

The Foyer will be unable to extend the offer of taking admissions until 10 pm so 
Children’s Services would not have the flexibility this would offer.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Foyer and Liberty House existing budget revenue stream 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended, and an exception to the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) may 
be approved by the Procurement Board to allow for contract extensions to be made 
where the original contract does not make provision for such an extension of the 
original term. There is, however, always a risk that any extension, if done outside of 
the usual tender process, or outside of the scope of CSO’s, could be subject to 
challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to 
tender and advertised in accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR).

The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed length of the 
contract. In this instance, as noted in the report, the proposed term is only 6 months. 
To mitigate that risk it could be argued that these proposals are merely a delay in the 
competitive process, not avoidance, whilst the Council looks to review the service. The 
extension with the existing providers with proven ability to meet the requirements of 
the service users would be argued to be more cost effective and efficient under the 
circumstances, in addition to the provision of continuity of support to vulnerable 
members of the community. Further reasons in support of approving the extension are 
set out in the body of the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Finance Team

The cost of the proposed 6 month extension to both contracts of £118k can be met 
from existing provision with the Children’s Services budget. 

However, it should be noted that this budget is within the integrated fund and any 
decision to extend should follow the governance / approval procedures of the fund. 

There is currently no specific budget available for the block booking of the additional 
4 beds at The Foyer and funding will therefore need to be identified for this proposal.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Conway, Procurement, tel. 
6248.

Procurement are happy to approve the extension for the Liberty House and Foyer 
contracts for the period 24th October 2020 to 23rd April 2021 at a cost of £117,778.00.  
It is noted that an extension is being sought in order to align the contract expiry dates 

Page 135



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

with all other SAILS service contracts as these have all been scheduled for retender 
within the next 12-18 months.

Procurement are happy to approve the cost for an additional staff member at a cost of 
£17,000 which will support the Route 29 programme however, it is noted that the 
Council will only be contributing 70% of the salary cost as 30% will be recovered 
through Housing Benefit Payments.  It is recommended that HR be engaged with in 
order to discuss job descriptions and potential TUPE requirements moving forward as 
HR have recently recruited other similar posts which will be supporting the Route 29 
agenda.

Procurement are happy with the block booking arrangements for 4 additional beds at 
a cost of £69,413.76 with the Foyer on the proviso that the arrangements would 
terminate on the 23rd April 2021 in line with the extension being sought with the main 
contract.   It is recommended that these requirements be reviewed and included in the 
new tender specification should these services need to be continued after April 21.

The total being sought under the three proposals comes to £204,191.76.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Consultation with Mike Hemingway 24.02.20 

By increase the service size more young people will be able to be placed within 
Salford. This will decrease the number of people needing to travel out of area for 
appointments which will cut down on carbon emissions. 

The Foyer is a purpose built building which is around 20 years old therefore the 
fabric of the building is a good quality and heat loss is a minimum. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Jane Anderson, Service Manager, 
Housing Choice and Support, 0161 793 2078

I cannot see any issues with the content and recommendations of the report.  It 
would seem to me that it is a sensible approach to extend the contracts so that the 
impact and needs of Route 29 can be taken into account in any future 
commissioning arrangements.

CONTACT OFFICER:  Jennifer Walsh 

TELEPHONE NUMER: 0161 778 0533 

Page 136



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

Seedley and Langworthy Broughton 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director Place

TO
Procurement Board

ON
4th March 2020

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for the appointment of a managing agent for 
100 Embankment, Salford

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board grant authority for a managing agent for 100 Embankment, 
Salford to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders 
through an open tender.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Council has committed to forward fund the construction of 100 Embankment, 
Salford which will provide ground and 8 upper floors of grade A office space.  The 
purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition to identify a property 
managing agent who has the capacity and proven experience of managing multi-
occupied, grade A office space. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None – The reports approving the Council’s funding of 100 Embankment were Part 2 
reports.

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS: 

At the Property and Regeneration Briefing on the 22nd May 2017, terms were approved 
for the City Council to forward fund the construction of 100 Embankment as part of the 
wider Salford Central regeneration.  Practical completion of the building is forecast for 
May 2020 at which time the building will be handed over to the Council.  The Council 
is responsible for ensuring that the building is managed to a standard comparable to 

Page 139

Agenda Item 5i



other prestigious office buildings in the city centre.  Take up of grade A space across 
the city centre is still strong and although no tenants are yet confirmed, marketing 
activity continues to identify occupiers.

A managing agent will provide both on site services to tenants but also the 
administrative functions of billing the rent and service charge on an ongoing basis.  
The services are similar to those provided in One New Bailey which continues to 
operate successfully.  The appointment of a managing agent in advance of completion 
of the building is crucial for both the mobilisation of the building, its readiness to receive 
tenants and its attractiveness to new occupiers.

The fee payable to the managing agent for the provision of all services is recoverable 
from the tenants under the building service charge and is estimated to be of a value in 
the range of £600-80,000 per annum.  If the building proceeds to be fully let, there will 
be no financial impact on the Council from this contract.

It was originally understood that the contract for this service would be let by the 
Council’s developer partner and novated to the Council upon practical completion of 
the building.  However, there were concerns that this would not be a compliant route 
to market therefore it is proposed to tender this contract as a second lot alongside the 
procurement of a managing agent for 2 New Bailey Square which was recently 
approved by Procurement Board.

Experience of managing similar properties is not available in-house therefore it is 
recommended that the Council’s requirement for these services is put out to market.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford 2025 Regeneration
Creating prosperity in Salford

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

There are no equality impacts arising as a consequence of this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Any fees not recovered from tenants of the building through the service charge will be 
payable by the City Council.  Provision for the costs of void space in the building is 
covered by the incentive pot held by the Council within the New Bailey reserve. This 
is in line with the council’s approach to the management of both the properties at New 
Bailey and 100 Embankment on a portfolio basis.

Page 140



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The report sets out that the Council proposes to enter into a compliant procurement 
process for the appointment of a managing agent at 100 Embankment. Undertaking a 
tender exercise in this way will give some comfort to the Council in ensuring that value 
for money is being obtained and tested, with open competition maintained. The 
carrying out of a compliant procurement exercise will ensure that the risk of challenge 
to the final award of the contract to the selected managing agent is minimal and that 
any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be successful.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Chris Mee - Strategic Finance Manager Ext 
0434

As detailed within the report, the cost of managing agent will largely be met through 
service charges to tenants payable to the Council. Provision for the cost of fees not 
recovered on assumed void space has been built into the budget projections for this 
scheme. Any variation to these assumptions will be managed as part of the overall 
lettings risk to the council through the tenant incentive pot held within the New Bailey 
reserve.  

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Heather Stanton ext. 6241

The tender will be conducted in accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing 
Orders.  Procurement has been engaged with the Property Management Team and 
has identified a compliant route for the tendering of these services.  It is expected that 
the contract will be in place before May 2020 for tendering of Property Management 
Services.  A compliant tendering process ensures the Council gains value for money 
and the risk of challenge is minimal.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

None

CONTACT OFFICER:      Steven Keigher                       TEL. NO. 779 6087

Page 141



WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  Ordsall 

Page 142


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 19 February 2020
	5a Request for Approval - Renewal of sub 100kW electricity contract for the Council
	05(a) - App 1 - NHH electricity contract breakdown at site level

	5b Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector
	5c Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Advice and Information Services
	Background report 1
	Background report 2
	Background report 3

	5d Request to go out to Tender - Key Cities Policy and Media Support Services
	5e Request for Approval - Contract Award - Electronic Payment Services via PayPoint and Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL)
	5f Request to go out to tender - Salford Residents Funeral Service
	5g Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Pendleton Roundabout Road Traffic Accident (RTA) Scheme
	5h Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Liberty House and the Foyer plus provision to support No Wrong Door Model
	5i Request for Approval to go to market to identify a Managing Agent for 100 Embankment

